

The Belfast Gazette

Registered as a newspaper
Published by Authority

# Contents

\* State/181

Parliament Ecclesiastical

- \* Public Finance/183
- \* Transport/183
  Planning
  Health
- \* Environment/188
- \* Water/189
- \* Agriculture & Fisheries/189

/\* Notices published today

# Energy

- \* Post & Telecom./189
- \* Other Notices/190 Competition
- \* Corporate Insolvency/195
- \* Personal Insolvency/199
  Companies Regulation
  Partnerships
  Societies Regulation
- \* Personal Legal/200
  Contributors Information

### PLEASE NOTE:

With effect from 8th April 2011 the style of the notices advertised in the Belfast Gazette will change slightly. This change reflects the style of the London and Edinburgh Gazettes.

### State



# **BY THE QUEEN**

### A Proclamation

"ELIZABETH THE SECOND by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and of Our other Realms and Territories Queen, Head of the Commonwealth, Defender of the Faith, To the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly GREETING:

WHEREAS you the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly have passed a Bill the short title of which is set out in the Schedule hereto but the said Bill does not become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly without Our Royal Assent;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Northern Ireland Act 1998 the said Bill has been submitted to Us by the Rt Hon Owen Paterson MP one of Our Principal Secretaries of State for our Royal Assent;

We have therefore caused these Our Letters Patent to be made and have signed them and by them We give our Royal Assent to the said Bill COMMANDING Master Charles William Grant Redpath the Clerk of the Crown for Northern Ireland to seal these Our Letters with the Great Seal of Northern Ireland AND ALSO COMMANDING that these Our Letters be notified to the Presiding Officer of the Northern Ireland Assembly;

AND FINALLY WE declare that, in accordance with the Northern Ireland Act 1998, at the beginning of the day on which Our Royal Assent has been notified as aforesaid the said Bill shall become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly.

In Witness whereof We have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent WITNESS Ourself at Buckingham Palace

on the 14th day of March 2011

in the sixtieth year of Our Reign

By the Queen Herself Signed with Her own Hand" SCHEDULE

### **Caravans Bill**

A Bill to amend the law relating to caravans and caravan sites.

(1101/48)

## BY THE QUEEN

### A Proclamation

"ELIZABETH THE SECOND by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and of Our other Realms and Territories Queen, Head of the Commonwealth, Defender of the Faith, To the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly GREETING:

WHEREAS you the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly have passed a Bill the short title of which is set out in the Schedule hereto but the said Bill does not become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly without Our Royal Assent;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Northern Ireland Act 1998 the said Bill has been submitted to Us by the Rt Hon Owen Paterson MP one of Our Principal Secretaries of State for our Royal Assent;

We have therefore caused these Our Letters Patent to be made and have signed them and by them We give our Royal Assent to the said Bill COMMANDING Master Charles William Grant Redpath the Clerk of the Crown for Northern Ireland to seal these Our Letters with the Great Seal of Northern Ireland AND ALSO COMMANDING that these Our Letters be notified to the Presiding Officer of the Northern Ireland Assembly:

AND FINALLY WE declare that, in accordance with the Northern Ireland Act 1998, at the beginning of the day on which Our Royal Assent has been notified as aforesaid the said Bill shall become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly.

In Witness whereof We have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent WITNESS Ourself at Buckingham Palace

on the 14th day of March 2011

in the sixtieth year of Our Reign

By the Queen Herself Signed with Her own Hand"

SCHEDULE

### **Local Government Finance Bill**

A Bill to make provision for the financial affairs of district councils; to make provision relating to grants to district councils and for payments to councillors and other payments by district councils. (1101/49)

# BY THE QUEEN

## A Proclamation

"ELIZABETH THE SECOND by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and of Our other Realms and Territories Queen, Head of the Commonwealth, Defender of the Faith, To the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly GREETING:

WHEREAS you the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly have passed a Bill the short title of which is set out in the Schedule hereto but the said Bill does not become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly without Our Royal Assent;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Northern Ireland Act 1998 the said Bill has been submitted to Us by the Rt Hon Owen Paterson MP one of Our Principal Secretaries of State for our Royal Assent;

We have therefore caused these Our Letters Patent to be made and have signed them and by them We give our Royal Assent to the said Bill COMMANDING Master Charles William Grant Redpath the Clerk of the Crown for Northern Ireland to seal these Our Letters with the Great Seal of Northern Ireland AND ALSO COMMANDING that these Our Letters be notified to the Presiding Officer of the Northern Ireland Assembly;

AND FINALLY WE declare that, in accordance with the Northern Ireland Act 1998, at the beginning of the day on which Our Royal Assent has been notified as aforesaid the said Bill shall become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly.

In Witness whereof We have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent

WITNESS Ourself at Buckingham Palace

on the 14th day of March 2011

in the sixtieth year of Our Reign

By the Queen Herself Signed with Her own Hand"

### **SCHEDULE**

#### **Transport Bill**

A Bill to make provision relating to public passenger transport and ancillary services: and for connected purposes. (1101/50)

## BY THE QUEEN

### A Proclamation

"ELIZABETH THE SECOND by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and of Our other Realms and Territories Queen, Head of the Commonwealth, Defender of the Faith, To the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly GREETING:

WHEREAS you the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly have passed a Bill the short title of which is set out in the Schedule hereto but the said Bill does not become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly without Our Royal Assent;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Northern Ireland Act 1998 the said Bill has been submitted to Us by the Rt Hon Owen Paterson MP one of Our Principal Secretaries of State for our Royal Assent;

We have therefore caused these Our Letters Patent to be made and have signed them and by them We give our Royal Assent to the said Bill COMMANDING Master Charles William Grant Redpath the Clerk of the Crown for Northern Ireland to seal these Our Letters with the Great Seal of Northern Ireland AND ALSO COMMANDING that these Our Letters be notified to the Presiding Officer of the Northern Ireland Assembly;

AND FINALLY WE declare that, in accordance with the Northern Ireland Act 1998, at the beginning of the day on which Our Royal Assent has been notified as aforesaid the said Bill shall become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly.

In Witness whereof We have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent WITNESS Ourself at Buckingham Palace

on the 21st day of March 2011

in the sixtieth year of Our Reign

By the Queen Herself Signed with Her own Hand"

**SCHEDULE** 

### **Budget Bill**

A Bill to authorise the issue out of the Consolidated Fund of certain sums for the service of the years ending 31st March 2011 and 2012; to appropriate those sums for specified purposes; to authorise the Department of Finance and Personnel to borrow on the credit of the appropriated sums; to authorise the use for the public service of certain resources for the years ending 31st March 2011 and 2012; and to revise the limits on the use of certain accruing resources in the year ending 31st March 2011. (1101/76)

## BY THE QUEEN

### A Proclamation

"ELIZABETH THE SECOND by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and of Our other Realms and Territories Queen, Head of the Commonwealth, Defender of the Faith, To the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly GREETING:

WHEREAS you the Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly have passed a Bill the short title of which is set out in the Schedule hereto but the said Bill does not become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly without Our Royal Assent;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Northern Ireland Act 1998 the said Bill has been submitted to Us by the Rt Hon Owen Paterson MP one of Our Principal Secretaries of State for our Royal Assent;

We have therefore caused these Our Letters Patent to be made and have signed them and by them We give our Royal Assent to the said Bill COMMANDING Master Charles William Grant Redpath the Clerk of the Crown for Northern Ireland to seal these Our Letters with the Great Seal of Northern Ireland AND ALSO COMMANDING that these Our Letters be notified to the Presiding Officer of the Northern Ireland Assembly:

AND FINALLY WE declare that, in accordance with the Northern Ireland Act 1998, at the beginning of the day on which Our Royal Assent

has been notified as aforesaid the said Bill shall become an Act of the Northern Ireland Assembly.

In Witness whereof We have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent WITNESS Ourself at Buckingham Palace

on the 21st day of March 2011

in the sixtieth year of Our Reign

By the Queen Herself Signed with Her own Hand"

#### Employment (No. 2) Bill

A Bill to make provision about the procedures for the resolution of employment disputes and the procedures of industrial tribunals and the Fair Employment Tribunal; to make provision in relation to time off for study or training; and for connected purposes. (1101/77)

## **Public Finance**



# National Savings National Savings and Investments

### INDEX-LINKED SAVINGS CERTIFICATES

# MOVEMENT OF THE UNITED KINGDOM GENERAL INDEX OF RETAIL PRICES

For the purposes of revaluing on repayment NS&I Index-linked Savings Certificates (Retirement Issue, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th, 7th, 8th and 9th Index-linked Issues) the Index figure issued by the Office for National Statistics in the month of March 2011 for the month of February 2011, and applicable to the month of April 2011 is 231.5. This figure is based on the revised reference base of 100 adopted in January 1987. In accordance with the relevant prospectuses a Notional Index figure of 913.3 has been calculated and will apply to Index-linked Savings Certificates purchased in March 1987 or earlier.

Issued by National Savings and Investments on behalf of the Treasury (1402/72)

### Customs & Excise

# Notice of Seizure of Goods under the Customs & Excise Management Act 1979

To the Owner of the following goods seized on 25th January 2011 at a yard behind a Car Wash on the Newry Road, Camlough, BT35 7JP

Pursuant to Section 139(6) of the Customs and Excise Management Act 1979, and paragraph 1 of Schedule 3 thereto, the Commissioners hereby give notice that by virtue of the powers contained in the Customs and Excise Acts, certain goods namely,

750 lts of Contaminated Derv

1 x Electric Pump, hose and nozzle

2 x Filter tubes

has been seized as liable to forfeiture.

If you claim that all or any of the aforesaid goods are not liable to forfeiture you must, within one month from the date of this notice of seizure, give notice of your claim in writing to the Commissioners at an office of Customs and Excise, in accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 of Schedule 3 to the Customs and Excise Management Act 1979. Your notice must also specify your name and address and the goods claimed as not liable to forfeiture. If you live outside the United Kingdom you must also give the name and address of a solicitor within the United Kingdom who is authorised to accept service of the process and to act on your behalf.

In default of such notice within the said period of one month, or if any requirement of the above mentioned paragraph 4 is not complied with, all the aforesaid goods will be deemed to have been duly condemned as forfeit. If you do give notice of claim in the proper form, the Commissioners will take legal proceedings for the condemnation of all goods claimed as not liable to forfeiture.

Barbara Talbot, Officer of Revenue and Customs, Carne House, 20 Corry Place, Belfast, BT3 9HY. (1405/35)

# Notice of Seizure of Goods under the Customs & Excise Management Act 1979

To the Owner of the following goods seized on 15th March 2011 at premises at Lurgan Road, Glassdrummand, Crossmaglen, BT35 9EF.

Pursuant to Section 139(6) of the Customs and Excise Management Act 1979, and paragraph 1 of Schedule 3 thereto, the Commissioners hereby give notice that by virtue of the powers contained in the Customs and Excise Acts, certain goods namely,

- 10 x pumps
- 6 x Cylindrical tanks
- 20 x İBC's
- 9 x Filters
- 1 x Skip
- 24 x 40 gallon (210 ltr)
- 1 x pallet containing 15 bags bleaching earth and 15 bags clay
- Quantity of hosing and couplings
- 33,700 lts contaminated Derv
- 800 lts acid
- 20,400 lts waste
- 3000 lts Green MGO

has been seized as liable to forfeiture.

If you claim that all or any of the aforesaid goods are not liable to forfeiture you must, within one month from the date of this notice of seizure, give notice of your claim in writing to the Commissioners at an office of Customs and Excise, in accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 of Schedule 3 to the Customs and Excise Management Act 1979. Your notice must also specify your name and address and the goods claimed as not liable to forfeiture. If you live outside the United Kingdom you must also give the name and address of a solicitor within the United Kingdom who is authorised to accept service of the process and to act on your behalf.

In default of such notice within the said period of one month, or if any requirement of the above mentioned paragraph 4 is not complied with, all the aforesaid goods will be deemed to have been duly condemned as forfeit. If you do give notice of claim in the proper form, the Commissioners will take legal proceedings for the condemnation of all goods claimed as not liable to forfeiture.

Barbara Talbot, Officer of Revenue and Customs, Carne House, 20 Corry Place, Belfast, BT3 9HY. (1405/40)

# **Transport**



# Railways

## Department for Regional Development

# THE RAIL PASSENGER RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS (EXEMPTIONS) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled, the Rail Passenger Rights and Obligations (Exemptions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. No. 134).

The Regulations exempt domestic rail passenger services from the provisions of Regulation (EC) No. 1371/2007 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23rd October 2007 on rail passengers' rights and obligations ("the Community Regulation") (OJ No. L315,3.12.2007, p. 14).

Copies of the Statutory Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (1505/43)

### **Civil Aviation**

TRANSPORT ACT 2000

CHARGES FOR AIR SERVICES

SPECIFICATION BY THE CIVIL AVIATION AUTHORITY THE CIVIL AVIATION AUTHORITY (NAVIGATION SERVICES

# CHARGES) SPECIFICATION 2011 TAKING EFFECT ON 1st APRIL 2011

The Civil Aviation Authority ("CAA"), in exercise of the powers conferred by sections 73, 74 and 75 of the Transport Act 2000(a), hereby makes the following Specification:

#### Citation and commencement

1. This Specification may be cited as the Civil Aviation Authority (Navigation Services Charges) Specification 2011 and shall take effect on 1st April 2011.

#### Revocation

2. The Civil Aviation Authority (Navigation Services Charges) Specification 2010, which took effect on 1st April 2010 is revoked.

#### Interpretation

3. - (1) In this Specification-

"NERL" means NATS (En Route) plc, a company incorporated in England and Wales with number 4129273 whose registered office is at 5th Floor South, Brettenham House, Lancaster Place, London WC2E 7EN;

"United Kingdom Air Pilot" means the document so entitled in force at the date of making this Specification and published under the authority of the CAA;

(2) Unless otherwise defined in this Specification and unless the context otherwise requires, expressions used in this Specification shall have the same respective meanings as in the Transport Act 2000 and the Air Navigation Order 2009(b).

### **Charges for London Approach services**

4. Subject to the provisions of this Specification, the operator of every aircraft for which chargeable air services are provided by NERL in connection with an approach to London-Heathrow, London-Gatwick, London-Stansted, London/City and London-Luton aerodromes (whether or not the services are actually used or could be used with the equipment installed in the aircraft), shall pay to NERL for those services the charges specified in column 2 of the Table below.

#### **TABLE** (1)(2) London Aerodrome Approach Service Charge London-Heathrow For each metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne up to 100 metric tonnes £0.22 For each additional metric tonne and for each £0.09 fraction of a metric tonne over 100 metric tonnes London-Gatwick For each metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne up to 100 metric tonnes £0.22 For each additional metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne over 100 metric tonnes £0.09 London-Stansted For each metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne up to 100 metric tonnes £0.22 For each additional metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne over 100 metric tonnes £0.09 London/City For each metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne up to 100 metric tonnes £0.22 For each additional metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne over 100 metric tonnes £0.09 London-Luton For each metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne up to 100 metric tonnes £0.22 For each additional metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne over 100 metric tonnes

### Charges for services provided in the Shanwick Oceanic Control Area

5. Subject to the provisions of this Specification, the operator of every aircraft (whether or not registered in the United Kingdom) which flies within the Shanwick Oceanic Control Area, as described in the United Kingdom Air Pilot on the date this Specification takes effect, and in respect of which a flight plan is communicated to the appropriate air traffic control unit in relation to its flight in that Area shall pay to NERL, for the chargeable air services made available by it in relation to that flight, a charge of £64.92.

### Charges for services provided for North Sea helicopters

- **6.** (1) Subject to the provisions of this Specification, the operator of every helicopter (whether or not registered in the United Kingdom) which flies within the area specified in sub-paragraph (2) of this paragraph while on a flight from any place in the United Kingdom to a vessel or an off-shore installation within the said area shall pay to NERL, for the chargeable air services made available by it in relation to that flight, a charge of £326.00.
- (2) The area referred to in sub-paragraph (1) of this paragraph is the area bounded by straight lines joining successively the following points –

6300N 00500W; 632833N 000000EW; thence south along the UK Median Line to 5500N 00302E; 5500N 00100W; 5600N 00230W; 5740N 00230W; 5740N 00400W; 5830N 00400W; 5830N 00500W; 6300N 00500W.

- (3) Subject to the provisions of this Specification, the operator of every helicopter (whether or not registered in the United Kingdom) which flies within the area specified in sub-paragraph (4) of this paragraph while on a flight from any place in the United Kingdom to a vessel or an off-shore installation within the said area shall pay to NERL for the chargeable air services made available by it in relation to that flight, a charge of £105.00.
- (4) The area referred to in sub-paragraph (3) of this paragraph is the area bounded by straight lines joining successively the following points -

5500N 00100W; 5500N 00300E; 5423N 00245E; 5256N 00309E; 5230N 00247E; 5226N 00137E; 5238N 00140E; 5251N 00124E; 5319N 00010E; 5500N 00100W.

### Value Added Tax charge

7. For the purpose of reimbursing NERL in respect of value added tax payable on the provision of chargeable air services for which a charge is payable pursuant to this Specification there shall be charged an additional charge equal to the amount of such tax and the incidence of the first mentioned charge shall determine the incidence of the additional charge.

### Circumstances in which charges are payable by the owner

8. If NERL is unable, after taking reasonable steps, to ascertain who is the operator, it may give notice to the owner of the aircraft that it will treat him as the operator for the purposes of this Specification until he establishes to the reasonable satisfaction of NERL that some other person is the operator; and from the time when the notice is given NERL shall be entitled, for so long as the owner is unable to establish as aforesaid that some other person is the operator, to treat the owner as if he were the operator, and for that purpose the provisions of this Specification (other than this paragraph) shall apply to the owner as if he were the operator.

By Order of the Civil Aviation Authority

C. R. Staples, Secretary and Legal Adviser, Civil Aviation Authority, CAA House, 45-59 Kingsway, London WC2B 6TE.

17th March 2011

### EXPLANATORY NOTE

(This note is not part of the Specification)

- 1. This Specification revokes and replaces the Civil Aviation Authority (Navigation Services Charges) Specification 2010.
- 2. This Specification sets out the charges payable in connection with London Approach services provided by NATS (En Route) Plc ("NERL") in respect of five London airports: Heathrow, Gatwick, Stansted, City, Luton. Charges for London/City and Luton are specified following the decision of the Civil Aviation Authority to include these airports within the London Approach service authorised by NERL's air traffic services licence with effect from 1 April 2011.
- 3. Charges in connection with such services provided by NERL for each metric tonne and for each fraction of a metric tonne up to 100 metric tonnes are set at £0.22 (paragraph 4). Charges in connection with such services are £0.09 for each metric tonne and each fraction of a metric tonne over 100 tonnes. For Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted the charges previously in effect were, respectively, £0.21 and £0.09.

- 4. The charge payable to NERL by the operator of an aircraft which flies within the Shanwick Oceanic Control Area and in respect of which a flight plan is communicated to the appropriate air traffic control unit is increased from £53.20 to £64.92 (paragraph 5).
- 5. The charge payable to NERL by the operator of a helicopter which flies from any place in the United Kingdom to a vessel or an off-shore installation within the area of the Northern North Sea described in paragraph 6(2) is increased from £301 to £326 (paragraph 6(1)).
- 5. The charge payable to NERL, by the operator of a helicopter which flies from any place in the United Kingdom to a vessel or an off-shore installation within the area of the Southern North Sea described in paragraph 6(4) is increased from £72 to £105 (paragraph 6(3)).

(a) 2000 c. 38.

**(b)** S.I. 2009/3015.

(1508/47)

## Roads (NI) Order



## Department for Regional Development

PARKING PLACES, LOADING BAY AND WAITING RESTRICTIONS ON ROADS ORDER ORDÚ UM BÁNNA LASTÁLA, ÁITEANNA PÁIRCEÁLA AGUS SRIANTA FEITHIMH AR BHÓITHRE

### Armagh

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled The Parking Places, Loading Bay and Waiting Restrictions on Roads (Armagh) (Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 83) which will come into operation on 1st April 2011.

The Order will authorise the use as parking places of lengths of **Lower English Street, Armagh** and to prescribe the conditions under which they may be used. The parking places will be located as follows:

(west side), from a point 55 metres north of its junction with Cathedral Road for a distance of 50 metres in a northerly direction; (east side), from a point 15 metres south of its junction with Lisanally Lane for a distance of 48 metres in a southerly direction; and from a point 81 metres south of its junction with Lisanally Lane for a distance of 33 metres in a southerly direction.

Between the hours of 8.30 a.m. and 6.15 p.m. Monday to Saturday inclusive parking will be limited to 1 hour with return to a parking place prohibited until 1 hour has expired. Vehicles are excepted from the conditions in certain circumstances.

The Order will also place-

a no waiting at any time restriction (including no loading or unloading) on **Lower English Street (west side)**, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Cathedral Road for a distance of 14 metres in a northerly direction: and

a no waiting restriction between the hours of 8.30 a.m. and 6.15 p.m. Monday to Saturday inclusive on **Lower English Street (west side)**, from a point 29 metres north of its junction with Cathedral Road for a distance of 21 metres in a northerly direction.

Vehicles are excepted from the restriction in certain circumstances.

The Order will also authorise the use as loading bays of lengths of **Lower English Street** as follows:

(east side) from a point 63 metres south of its junction with Lisanally Lane for a distance of 18 metres in a southerly direction; and from a point 119 metres south of its junction with Lisanally Lane for a distance of 12 metres in a southerly direction.

The loading bays will operate during the hours of 8.30 a.m. to 6.15 p.m. Monday to Saturday inclusive and will be for the use of all vehicles loading and unloading certain goods.

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr (1510/4)

## Department for Regional Development

ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT: NOTICE OF PUBLICATION RÁITEAS COMHSHAOIL: FÓGRA FOILSITHE

**A5** Western Transport Corridor

#### Addendum

Further to the Notice which was first published during week ending 19 November 2010, the Department for Regional Development hereby gives notice in accordance with Article 67A(3) and (9) of the Roads (Northern Ireland) Order 1993, that it has prepared an Addendum to the Environmental Statement on the effects of the proposed A5 Western Transport Corridor. The Addendum reports the findings of further assessments that have been undertaken in relation to air quality and traffic noise following updating of the Traffic Model. This document should be read in conjunction with the Environmental Statement already published. This Addendum, along with the full Environmental Statement, may be inspected by any person, free of charge, at all reasonable hours during the period 22 March 2011 to 6 May 2011 at the Roads Service offices of:

- Western Division, County Hall, Drumragh Avenue, Omagh;
- · Boaz House, 15 Scarffe's Entry, Omagh;
- Omagh Section Office, 32 Deverney Road, Arvalee, Omagh;
- Dungannon Section Office, Moygashel Depot, Main Street, Moygashel;
- Strabane Section Office, 20 Derry Road, Strabane;
- Headquarters, Room 2-13, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast:
- Northern Division, Derry Section Office, 1 Crescent Road, Londonderry;

and at the offices of-

- Dungannon and South Tyrone Borough Council, Circular Road, Dungannon;
- Strabane District Council, 47 Derry Road, Strabane;
- Derry City Council, 98 Strand Road, Londonderry;
- Omagh District Council, The Grange, Mountjoy Road, Omagh;
- Monaghan County Council, Roads Office, MTEK II Office, Armagh Road, Monaghan, Co. Monaghan; and
- Donegal County Council, Public Services Centre, Drumlonagher, Donegal Town, Co. Donegal.

Alternatively, an electronic version of the Addendum is available for viewing at www.drdni.gov.uk/index/publications/publications and the Addendum, along with the Environmental Statement, is also available on the project website www.a5wtc.com/.

Any person may, within the said period, express an opinion on the Addendum to the Divisional Roads Manager, Department for Regional Development, Roads Service – Western Division, County Hall, Drumragh–Avenue, Omagh BT79 7AF.

Information you provide in your response, including personal information, could be published or disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA). For further details on confidentiality and FOIA, please refer to www.ico.gov.uk.

D. J. Millar, A senior officer of the Department for Regional Development

10 March 2011 (1510/5)

## Department for Regional Development

PARKING PLACES FOR DISABLED PERSONS' VEHICLES ORDÚ UM ÁITEANNA PÁIRCEÁLA (FEITHICLÍ DHAOINE MÍCHUMASAITHE)

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Parking Places (Disabled Persons' Vehicles) (Amendment No. 2) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 88) which comes into operation on 1st April 2011.

The effect of the Order is to authorise the creation of parking places in Monaghan Street (2 bays), **Newry**.

Waiting shall be limited to 2 hours during the period 8.30 a.m. and 6.15 p.m. Monday to Saturday with return to a parking place prohibited until a period of 3 hours has elapsed.

### All parking places are for the use of disabled persons' vehicles only.

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http:// www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Parking Places on Roads (Disabled Persons' Vehicles) (Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 87) which comes into operation on 1st April 2011.

The effect of the Order is to authorise the creation of parking places in Bridge Street and Linenhall Street, Lisburn.

Waiting shall be limited to 2 hours during the period 8.00 a.m. and 6.00 p.m. Monday to Saturday with return to a parking place prohibited until a period of 1 hour has expired or until 6.00 p.m.

#### All parking places are for the use of disabled persons' vehicles only.

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http:// www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr (1510/6)

## Department for Regional Development

## WAITING RESTRICTIONS/SRIANTA FEITHIMH

### Newry

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled The Waiting Restrictions (Newry) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 96) which will come into operation on 4th April 2011.

The purpose of the Order is to place a no waiting at any time restriction on Drumalane Road west side, from a point 53 metres south-east of its junction with A2 Dublin Road for a distance of 30 metres in a south easterly direction; and Drumalane Road east side, from a point 68 metres south-east of its junction with Dublin Road for a distance of 110 metres in a south-easterly direction. Vehicles are excepted from the restrictions

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http:// (1510/7)www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr

## Department for Regional Development

### LOADING BAYS/ BÁNNALASTÁLA

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled The Loading Bays on Roads (Amendment No. 2) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 102) which comes into operation on 4th April 2011.

The purpose of the Order is to amend Schedule 1 to the Loading Bays on Roads Order (Northern Ireland) 2007 by the addition of a loading bay on St. Mary's Street, Newry for the use of all vehicles loading and unloading certain goods during the hours 8.30 a.m. to 6.15 p.m. Monday to Saturday inclusive. The length of road referred to above is contained within a designated parking place prescribed in the On-Street Parking Order. This Order also amends that Order by redefining the designated parking place to exclude this length of road.

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast BT2 8GB or viewed online at http:// www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr (1510/8)

# Department for Regional Development

### ROAD RACES (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1986/ORDÚ UM RÁSAÍ BÓTHAIR

### **Motor Races 2011**

Each promoter listed in Column 1 below has applied to the Department for Regional Development for an Order under Article 3(1) of the Road Races (Northern Ireland) Order 1986 in respect of the event specified opposite to its name in Column 2.

In accordance with the powers conferred by Article 3(2) of the Road Races (Northern Ireland) Order 1986 the Department for Regional Development grants the applications in respect of the events listed in Column 2.

Column 1 - Promoter Column 2 - Event Cookstown & District Motor Cycle Cookstown 100

Club (Road Racing) Ltd

Coleraine & District Motor Club Ltd North West 200 Dungannon and District Motor Bush, Dungannon

Cycle Club

Dundrod & District Motorcycle Ulster Grand Prix Bike Week 2011 Club Ltd

Armoy Motorcycle Road Racing

Armoy Motorcycle Race

Northern Ireland Motor Club Ltd Ulster International Rally 2011 Ulster Automobile Club Ltd Circuit of Ireland International

Rally

Mid-Antrim Motor Club Ltd Mid-Antrim 150 North Armagh Motorcycle and Car Tandragee 100

Club Ltd

Sperrins Stages Rally Magherafelt and District Motor

Club Ltd

Sealed with the Official Seal of the Department for Regional Development on 15th March 2011

(L.S.) D. J. Millar

A senior officer of the Department for Regional Development

(1510/9)

## Department for Regional Development

### LOADING BAYS/BÁNNA LASTÁLA

#### Lisburn

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled The Loading Bays on Roads (Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 93) which will come into operation on 1st April 2011

The effect of the Order is to introduce a loading bay on a length of Barrack Street, Lisburn

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http:// www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr

# Department for Regional Development

ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT: NOTICE TO PROCEED RÁITEAS COMHSHAOIL: FÓGRA LE DUL AR AGHAIDH

North Western Key Transport Corridor

T8/M22 (A6) Randalstown To Toome Dualling Scheme

### T8 (A6) Toome To Castledawson Dualling Scheme

The Department for Regional Development having complied with Article 67A(7) of the Roads (Northern Ireland) Order 1993 ("the 1993 Order") hereby gives notice in accordance with the provisions of Article 67A(8) and (9) of its intention to proceed with the proposed T8/M22 (A6) Randalstown to Toome Dualling Scheme and the T8 (A6) Toome to Castledawson Dualling Scheme.

The general effect of the project will be to provide a new dual carriageway from the western end of the M22 Motorway at Randalstown to the Castledawson Roundabout. Alteration to the local road network includes bridging the Derrygowan Road, Ballynafey Road, Deerpark Road and Hillhead Road over the new dual carriageway.

In addition to earthworks and drainage, landscaping will be carried out to improve the appearance of the road and lessen the visual impact of the proposed project.

Documents containing -

- (a) the content of the decision;
- (b) the main reasons and considerations on which the decision is based;
- (c) a description of the main measures to avoid, reduce and, if possible, offset the major adverse effects of the project;
- (d) information about the consultation carried out in compliance with Articles 67A and 67B, the representations received on consultation, and any changes made as a result of those representations; and
- (e) the Inspector's Report on inquiries held into the proposals,

may be inspected by any person, free of charge, at all reasonable times during the period from 22 March 2011 to 6 May 2011 at the following offices of the Department:

- Roads Service Northern Division, County Hall, Castlerock Road, Coleraine BT51 3HS;
- Roads Service Northern Division, County Hall, 182 Galgorm Road, Ballymena BT42 1QG;
- Roads Service Northern Division, Antrim Section Office, Crown Buildings, 20 Castle Street, Antrim BT41 4JE;
- Roads Service Western Division, County Hall, Drumragh Avenue, Omagh BT79 7AF;
- Roads Service Headquarters, Room 2-13, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast BT2 8GB;

and at the offices of:

- Antrim Borough Council, Antrim Civic Centre, 50 Stiles Way, Antrim BT41 2UB;
- Magherafelt District Council, 50 Ballyronan Road, Magherafelt BT45 6EN; and
- Magherafelt Library, The Bridewell, 6 Church Street, Magherafelt BT45 6AN.

Alternatively, electronic versions of the Departmental Decisions may be viewed at www.drdni.gov.uk/index/publications.htm.

In accordance with Article 67BA(1) of the 1993 Order, anyone who wishes to question the validity of the Department's decision to proceed with the schemes on the ground that—

(a) it is not within the powers of the 1993 Order; or

(b) any requirement of Part V of the 1993 Order has not been complied with in relation to the decision;

may, within 6 weeks from the date of publication of this notice, make an application for the purpose to the High Court. (1510/11)

## Department for Regional Development

#### TRUNK ROAD ORDER ORDÚ UM MÓRBHÓTHAR

The Trunk Road T8 (Randalstown To Toome) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Trunk Road T8 (Randalstown to Toome) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 74) which will come into operation on 30 April 2011.

The Order provides that 175 metres of proposed new road described in Part I of the Schedule, shall be special road subject to motorway traffic restrictions and be part of the M22 Motorway and Moira-Antrim-Magherafelt-Moneymore Trunk Road T8 and that 7715 metres of new roads described in Part II of the Schedule, shall become trunk roads and be part of the trunk road system. The Order also provides for the abandonment and stopping-up of certain roads.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.opsi.gov.uk.

(1510/12)

# Department for Regional Development

### TRUNK ROAD ORDER ORDÚ UM MÓRBHÓTHAR

The Trunk Road T8 (Toome To Castledawson) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Trunk Road T8 (Toome to Castledawson) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 98) which will come into operation on 7 May 2011.

The Order provides that 7850 metres of proposed new road described in Part I of the Schedule, shall be part of the Moira-Antrim-Magherafelt-Moneymore Trunk Road T8 and be part of the trunk road system. The Order also provides for the abandonment and stopping-up of certain roads.

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 2-13, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http://www.opsi.gov.uk.

D. J. Millar, A senior officer of the Department for Regional Development.

14 March 2011 (1510/13)

## Department for Regional Development

### CYCLE LANES / ORDÚ UM BEALAÍ ROTHAÍOCHTA Glengall Street and Great Victoria Street, Belfast

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled The Cycle Lanes (Glengall Street and Great Victoria Street, Belfast) (Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 84) which will come into operation on 1st April 2011.

The purpose of the Order is to amend The Cycle Lanes (Glengall Street and Great Victoria Street, Belfast) Order (Northern Ireland) 2009 by reducing the length of the existing one-way cycle lane on Glengall Street to a point 74 metres west of its junction with Great Victoria Street.

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr (1510/14)

## Department for Regional Development

### ONE-WAY TRAFFIC ORDER/ORDÚ UM THRÁCHT AONTREO Glengall Street, Belfast

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled The One-Way Traffic (Belfast) (Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R.2011 No. 85) which will come into operation on 1st April 2011.

The purpose of the Order is to reduce the length of the existing one-way traffic system on Glengall Street, Belfast from 116.5 metres to 74 metres from its junction with Great Victoria Street.

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr (1510/15)

## Department for Regional Development

#### ON-STREET PARKING ORDER ORDÚ UM PÁIRCEÁIL SRÁIDE

The Department for Regional Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The On-Street Parking (Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 126) which comes into operation on 3rd May 2011

The effect of the Order is to increase tariffs for on-street parking in Belfast from £0.60 to £0.80 per hour and from £1.00 to £1.20 per hour as follows:

In Combermere Street, Glenalpin Street, Kensington Street, Sandy Row (East Side), Sandy Row (West Side) and Stroud Street the tariffs are changed as follows:

Ü	Old Rate	New Rate
Up to 15 minutes	15p	20p
Up to 30 minutes	30p	40p
Up to 45 minutes	45p	60p
Up to 1 hour	60p	80p
Up to 11/4 hours	£0.75	£1.00
Up to 11/2 hours	£0.90	£1.20
Up to 13/4 hours	£1.05	£1.40
Up to 2 hours	£1.20	£1.60
Up to 21/4 hours	£1.35 (where applicable)	£1.80 (where applicable)
Up to 21/2 hours	£1.50 (where applicable)	£2.00 (where applicable)
Up to 23/4 hours	£1.65 (where applicable)	£2.20 (where applicable)
Up to 3 hours	£1.80 (where applicable)	£2.40 (where applicable)
Up to 31/4 hours	£1.95 (where applicable)	£2.60 (where applicable)
Up to 31/2 hours	£2.10 (where applicable)	£2.80 (where applicable)
Up to 33/4 hours	£2.25 (where applicable)	£3.00 (where applicable)
Up to 4 hours	£2.40 (where applicable)	£3.20 (where applicable)

In Academy Street, Adelaide Street, Albion Street - from Great Victoria Street for a distance of 40 metres in a westerly direction, Alfred Street (East Side), Alfred Street - from Clarence Street to Ormeau Avenue (West Side), Alfred Street - from May Street to Franklin Street (West Side), Amelia Street, Ann Street - from Oxford Street to Victoria Street, Apsley Street - from Ormeau Avenue for a distance of 88 metres in a southerly direction, Bankmore Street, Bedford Street, Berry Street, Botanic Avenue - from Shaftesbury Square to University Street (East Side), Botanic Avenue - from Lower Crescent to Shaftesbury Square (West Side), Botanic Avenue - from University Street to Lower Crescent (West Side), Bradbury Place (East Side), Bradbury Place (West Side), Bridge Street, Brunswick Street, Cameron Street - for a distance of 37 metres from Botanic Avenue, Castle Street, Charlotte Street - from Ormeau Avenue to Bankmore Street, Chichester Street - from Donegall

Square East to Victoria Street, Clarence Street - from Bedford Street to Adelaide Street (North Side), Clarence Street - from Bedford Street to Alfred Street (South Side), Clarence Street West, College Square East, College Square North, Crescent Gardens, Cromwell Road - for a distance of 26 metres from Botanic Avenue, Curtis Street, Donegall Street - from Royal Avenue to Waring Street, Donegall Street - from Union Street to Royal Avenue, Donegall Quay, Downshire Place, Dublin Road (East Side), Dublin Road (West Side), Edward Street, Exchange Street - from Dunbar Street to Academy Street, Exchange Street - from Corporation Street to Dunbar Link, Exchange Street West, Franklin Street, Fulton Street, Glengall Street, Gloucester Street, Great Victoria Street - from Hope Street to Shaftesbury Square (East Side), Great Victoria Street from Fisherwick Place to Hope Street (East Side), Great Victoria Street - from Shaftesbury Square to Hope Street (West Side), Great Victoria Street - from Hope Street to Fisherwick Place (West Side), Gresham Street, Hardcastle Street, Hartington Street, Hope Street - from Great Victoria Street to Little Victoria Street, Hope Street - from Sandy Row to Great Victoria Street, India Street - for a distance of 26 metres from Botanic Avenue, Ireton Street - for a distance of 26 metres from Botanic Avenue, James Street South, Joy Street - from Sussex Place to May Street, Kent Street - from Carrick Hill to Royal Avenue, King Street, Library Street - from Carrick Hill to Royal Avenue, Lincoln Place, Linenhall Street, Linenhall Street West, Little Donegall Street - from Carrick Hill to Library Street, Little Victoria Street - from Hope Street to Bruce Street, Lower Crescent - for a distance of 16 metres from Botanic Avenue (South Side), Lower Crescent - from a point 25 metres west of Botanic Avenue to a point 7 metres west of Crescent Gardens (South Side), Lower Crescent - from a point 18 metres west of Crescent Gardens to University Road (South Side), Lower Crescent (North Side), Marcus Ward Street, Marlborough Street, Maryville Street - from Ormeau Avenue for a distance of 88 metres in a southerly direction, May Street, Montgomery Street, Mount Charles - for a distance of 28 metres from Botanic Avenue, Murray Street, McClintock Street, North Street - from Royal Avenue to Bridge Street, North Street - from Royal Avenue to Winetavern Street (South-West Side), North Street - from Union Street to Royal Avenue (North-East Side), North Street - from Winetavern Street to Carrick Hill, Ormeau Avenue (North-East Side), Ormeau Avenue (South-West Side), Oxford Street, Pakenham Street from Dublin Road to House No. 1, Posnett Street - from Botanic Avenue to Vernon Street, Prince's Street, Queen's Square, Queen Street, Royal Avenue - from North Street to Donegall Street, Russell Street - from Alfred Street to Joy Street (excluding the lay-by), Salisbury Street from Dublin Road to Ashbourne Place, Skipper Street, Smithfield Square North, Stephen Street - from Library Street to Little Donegall Street, Sussex Place (excluding the lay-by), Talbot Street, Union Street, Upper Arthur Street, Upper Crescent, Upper Queen Street, Ventry Street, Victoria Street, Waring Street - from Victoria Street to Donegall Street, Waring Street - from Donegall Street to North Street, Wellington Place, Wellwood Street, Winetavern Street, York Street - from Donegall Street to Frederick Street, Donegall Street - from Union Street to Carrick Hill. East Bridge Street - from Oxford Street to Cromac Street (South Side) and Verner Street the tariffs are changed as follows:

	Old Rate	New Rate
Up to 15 minutes	25p	30p
Up to 30 minutes	50p	60p
Up to 45 minutes	75p	90p
Up to 1 hour	£1.00	£1.20
Up to 11/4 hours	£1.25 (where applicable)	£1.50 (where applicable)
Up to 11/2 hours	£1.50 (where applicable)	£1.80 (where applicable)
Up to 13/4 hours	£1.75 (where applicable)	£2.10 (where applicable)
Up to 2 hours	£2.00 (where applicable)	£2.40 (where applicable)
Up to 21/4 hours	£2.25 (where applicable)	£2.70 (where applicable)
Up to 21/2 hours	£2.50 (where applicable)	£3.00 (where applicable)
Up to 2 <sup>3</sup> / <sub>4</sub> hours	£2.75 (where applicable)	£3.30 (where applicable)
Up to 3 hours	£3.00 (where applicable)	£3.60 (where applicable)
Up to 31/4 hours	£3.25 (where applicable)	£3.90 (where applicable)
Up to 31/2 hours	£3.50 (where applicable)	£4.20 (where applicable)
Up to 3 <sup>3</sup> / <sub>4</sub> hours	£3.75 (where applicable)	£4.50 (where applicable)
Up to 4 hours	£4.00 (where applicable)	£4.80 (where applicable)

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast BT2 8GB or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr (1510/32)

## Department for Regional Development

### OFF-STREET PARKING ORDERS ORDÚ UM PÁIRCEÁIL CHARRCHLÓIS

Notice is given that the Department for Regional Development made on 18th March 2011 an Order entitled The Off-Street Parking

(Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 125) which will come into operation on 3rd May 2011. The effect of the Order is to-

- substitute a new scale of charges for car parks at Antrim: Central, Railway Street; Armagh: Dobbin Street Lane (excepting St. Malachy's part), Friary Road (East Side), Linenhall Street, Mall West; Ballyclare: Harrier Way (off Avondale Drive), Market Square; Ballymena: Ballymoney Road, Broughshane Street 1, Church Street 3, Town Centre Multi Storev: Ballymonev Castle Street, Church Street/Main Street: Banbridge: Commercial Road, Downshire Place South, Kenlis Street; Bangor: Abbey Street East, Bingham Lane, Castle Street, Clifton Road, Holburn Avenue, Mills Road, The Vennel; Belfast: Bankmore Street, Charlotte Street, Corporation Square, Corporation Street, Cromac Street, 11-19 Dunbar Street, 31-35 Exchange Street, 7-43 Frederick Street, Hope Street North, 165 Kent Street, Little Donegall Street, Little Victoria Street, Smithfield Market, York Street 1; Carrickfergus: High Street, Joymount; Coleraine: Long Commons, Railway Place, Railway Road; Downpatrick Irish Street; Dungannon: Anne Street East, Castle Hill, Perry Street West, Scotch Street North: Enniskillen Down Street/ Market Street/ Cross Street, Eden Street, Head Street, Quay Lane North, Quay Lane South, Shore Road East, Shore Road West; Hillsborough: Ballynahinch Street; Holywood: Church Road, Hibernia Street South; Larne: Agnew Street, Fairhill, Narrow Gauge Road; Limavady: Central, Connell Street; Lisburn: Antrim Street, Barrack Street, Governor's Road, Laganbank Road, Longstone Street Roundabout, Queen's Road, Smithfield Square East; Londonderry: Bishop Street, Carlisle Road, City Hotel, Foyle Road (GNR Site), Queen's Quay South, Society Street, Spencer Road/Hill's Site, Strand Road, Victoria Market, William Street; Lurgan: Castle Lane; Magherafelt: Rainey Street, Union Road; Newry: Basin Walk, Canal Bank I, Canal Bank II, Mill Street, Monaghan Street, New Street; Newtownards: Ann Street, Gas Works North/Mill Street, Kennel Lane, Mill Street, Old Cross Street East, Old Cross Street West, South Street, South Street/Court Street, Upper Court Street; Omagh: Drumragh Avenue, Foundry Lane, Johnston Park, Market Place, Market Street; Portadown: Magowan Buildings II, Marley Street, Meadow Lane East, Meadow Lane West; Strabane: Butcher Street, Lower Main Street North, Lower Main Street South, Railway Street; and Whiteabbey: 606-612 Shore Road.
- reduce charges for car parks at Ballynahinch: Windmill Street;
   Carrickfergus: St. Brides Street;
   Larne: Circular Road West.
- · add new tarriffs to the existing scale of charges.

Copies of the Order may be obtained from Room 213, Clarence Court, 10-18 Adelaide Street, Belfast, BT2 8GB or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr (1510/33)

# **Environment**



# **Environmental Protection**

### Mr. Ian Brown

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF AN APPLICATION MADE UNDER REGULATION 10 OF THE POLLUTION PREVENTION AND CONTROL (NORTHERN IRELAND) REGULATIONS 2003 INTEGRATED POLLUTION PREVENTION AND CONTROL

Notice is hereby given that Mr. Ian Brown has applied to the Chief Inspector for an Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control (IPPC) Permit to operate an installation involving the intensive rearing of poultry. The installation is located at 95 Ballyronan Road, Magherafelt, Co. Londonderry, BT45 6EW.

The application contains all particulars as required by the Regulations including a description of forseeable significant effects of emissions from the installation on the environment.

A copy of the application is available for public inspection free of charge between the hours of 09.30–12.00 and 14.00–15.30 at Northern Ireland Environmental Agency, Klondyke Building, Cromac Avenue, Gasworks Business Park, Lower Ormeau Road, Belfast, BT7 2JA and Magherafelt District Council, 50 Ballyronan Road, Magherafelt BT45 6EN. In addition, members of the public who wish to obtain a copy of the relevant information contained in the register can do so upon the payment of a reasonable charge to cover the costs of photocopying.

Written representations about the application may be sent to the Chief Inspector of the Industrial Pollution & Radiochemical Inspectorate, Northern Ireland Environmental Agency, (address as above) within 42 days from the date of ths publication. All representations will be placed on the public register unless a representation contains a written request to the contrary. If there is such a request, the register will only include a statement that there has been such a request. (1803/60)

Mr J. Flynn (Area Engineer), Department of Agriculture and Rural Development, Rivers Agency, Ravarnet House, Altona Road, Lisburn, BT27 5OB

(The closing date for receipt of representations is 06 May 2011)
(1903/46

## Roy Wright

### PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF AN APPLICATION MADE UNDER REGULATION 10 OF THE POLLUTION PREVENTION AND CONTROL (NORTHERN IRELAND) REGULATIONS 2003 INTEGRATED POLLUTION PREVENTION AND CONTROL

Notice is hereby given that Roy Wright applied to the Chief Inspector for an Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control (IPPC) Permit to operate an installation involving the intensive rearing of poultry. The installation is located at Tullycorker Road, Clogher, Co. Tyrone, BT76 0DP.

The application contains all particulars as required by the Regulations including a description of forseeable significant effects of emissions from the installation on the environment.

A copy of the application is available for public inspection free of charge between the hours of 09.30–12.00 and 14.00–15.30 at Northern Ireland Environmental Agency, Klondyke Building, Cromac Avenue, Gasworks Business Park, Lower Ormeau Road, Belfast, BT7 2JA and Dungannon and South Tyrone Borough Council, Circular Road, Dungannon, BT71 6DT. In addition, members of the public who wish to obtain a copy of the relevant information contained in the register can do so upon the payment of a reasonable charge to cover the costs of photocopying.

Written representations about the application may be sent to the Chief Inspector of the Industrial Pollution & Radiochemical Inspectorate, Northern Ireland Environmental Agency, (address as above) within 42 days from Date of Publication. All representations will be placed on the public register unless a representation contains a written request to the contrary. If there is such a request, the register will only include a statement that there has been such a request. (1803/34)

## Water



# Department of Agriculture and Rural Development

PROPOSED DRAINAGE CULVERT REFURBISHMENT SCHEME AT BRADSHAWS BRAE, NEWTOWNARDS, CO. DOWN

SCÉIM MHOLTA ATHCHÓIRIÚ LINTÉAR DRAENÁLA AG MALA BRADSHAW, BAILE NUA NA HARDA, CO. AN DÚIN

The Department of Agriculture and Rural Development hereby gives notice in pursuance of Article 12A of the Drainage (Northern Ireland) Order 1973 as amended by the Drainage (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001 that it proposes to carry out works on the Bradshaws Brae Stream at Bradshaws Brae Newtownards.

The proposed scheme entails the diversion and construction of a replacement culvert and associated structures at Bradshaws Brae.

The proposed scheme outline can be viewed at Ards Borough Council Office at 2 Church Street, Newtownards, County Down, BT23 4AP.

Having determined that the proposed works are not by reason amongst other things of their nature, size and location, likely to have significant environmental effects, it is the Department's intension not to prepare an Environmental Statement.

In accordance with Article 12A(3) and (4) of the Order, any person who considers that his/her interests will be prejudicially affected, or wishes to make representations with regard to the Department's intension not to prepare an Environmental Statement, may send any observations in writing in regard to the scheme to:

# **Agriculture & Fisheries**



### **Fisheries**

# Department of Agriculture and Rural Development

THE AQUATIC ANIMAL HEALTH (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Agriculture and Rural Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "Aquatic Animal Health (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011". These Regulations come into operation on 1 May 2011.

The Rule amends the Aquatic Animal Health Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009 by adding Ostreid herpesvirus  $1\mu var$  (OsHV1-  $\mu var)$  to Schedule 1 List of Diseases.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2001/17)

# Department of Agriculture and Rural Development

# THE FISHING BOATS (ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION OF FISHING ACTIVITIES DATA) SCHEME (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Agriculture and Rural Development has made the above Scheme under section 15 of the Fisheries Act 1981 and with the approval of the Department of Finance and Personnel to make provision for the payment of grants in respect of eligible Northern Ireland sea fishing boats as contribution towards the cost of purchase or supply of approved computer software to facilitate the recording and transmission of fishing logbook data, transhipment data and landing declaration data electronically in accordance with Articles 15, 22, and 24 of Council Regulation (EC) No 1224/2009.

The Scheme was made under confirmatory procedure and was approved by the Assembly on 21st March 2011.

The Scheme came into operation on 4th February 2011 and may be purchased from The Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2001/63)

## Post & Telecom.



# Post Office Royal Mail Group Limited

ROYAL MAIL GROUP LTD SCHEME IP2/2011

[This Note is not part of the Scheme]

The Scheme which follows this Note is made under section 89 of the Postal Services Act 2000 and amends the Successor Postal Services Company Inland Parcel Post Scheme 2001. The Scheme, which comes into force on 4th April 2011 revises certain postal charges and compensation provisions.

# ROYAL MAIL GROUP LTD INLAND PARCEL POST (AMENDMENT No. 17) SCHEME 2011

Made	21st March 2011
Coming into operation	4th April 2011

Royal Mail Group Ltd<sup>(a)</sup> by virtue of the powers conferred upon it by section 89 of the Postal Services Act 2000<sup>(b)</sup> and of all other powers enabling it in this behalf, hereby makes the following Scheme:

#### Commencement and citation

- This Scheme shall come into operation on 21st March 2011 and may be cited as the Royal Mail Group Ltd Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 17) Scheme 2011.
- This Scheme shall be read as one with the Successor Postal Services Company Inland Parcel Post Scheme 2001<sup>(c)</sup> (hereinafter called "the Scheme

The Scheme as set out below includes the following amendments to it:

- (a) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 1) Scheme
- (b) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 2) Scheme 1991
- (c) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 3) Scheme
- (d) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 4) Scheme
- (e) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 5) Scheme 1993
- (f) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 6) Scheme
- (g) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 7) Scheme 1994
- (h) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 8) Scheme
- (i) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 9) Scheme
- (j) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 10) Scheme
- 1998(k) the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 11) Scheme
- the Post Office Inland Parcel Post Amendment (No. 12) Scheme
- 2000
  (m) the Consignia plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 1)
- Scheme 2001
  (n) the Consignia plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 2)
  Scheme 2001
- (o) the Consignia plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 3) Scheme 2002
- (p) the Consignia plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 4) Scheme 2002
- (q) the Royal Mail Group plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 5) Scheme 2003
- (r) the Royal Mail Group plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 6) Scheme 2003
- (s) the Royal Mail Group plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 7) Scheme 2004
- (t) the Royal Mail Group plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 8) Scheme 2004
- (u) the Royal Mail Group plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 9) Scheme IP 1/2005
- (v) the Royal Mail Group plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 10) Scheme IP1/2006
- (w) the Royal Mail Group plc Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 11) Scheme 2007 IP1/2007
- (x) the Royal Mail Group Limited, Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 12) Scheme 2008 IP1/2008
- (y) the Royal Mail Group Limited, Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 13) Scheme 2008 IP2/2008
- (z) the Royal Mail Group Limited Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 14) Scheme 2008 IP3/2008 (the Scheme that follows this Explanatory Note)
- (aa) the Royal Mail Group Limited Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No.15) Scheme 2010 IP1 2010
- (bb) the Royal Mail Group Limited Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 16) Scheme IP1 2011
- (cc) the Royal Mail Group Limited Inland Parcel Post (Amendment No. 17) Scheme IP2 2011 (the Scheme that follows this Explanatory Note)
- 3. The existing Schedule 1, sub-paragraph (a) shall be deleted in its entirety and the following substituted for it.

### (a) Rates of Postage for Royal Mail Standard Parcels

Column 1	Column 2
Description of Postal Packet	Rate of Postage
	£
Weight not exceeding 2kg	4.41
Weight exceeding 2kg but not exceeding 4kg	7.62
Weight exceeding 4kg but not exceeding 6kg	10.34
Weight exceeding 6kg but not exceeding 8kg	12.67
Weight exceeding 8kg but not exceeding 10kg	g 13.61
Weight exceeding 10kg but not exceeding 20l	kg 15.86

- \* If the compensation fee parcel service is chosen, these rates are subject to Value Added Tax (VAT). See Schedule 4, part 1.
- 4. The existing Schedule 4 Part 1 shall be deleted in its entirety and the following substituted for it.

#### "Part I

Compensation fees and maximum compensation.

Column 1	Column 2			
Compensation fee	Maximum			
(in addition to postage) **	compensation payable			
£1.00	£100			
£2.50	£250			
£3.50	£500			

\*\* Fees are subject to VAT at the standard rate

If the compensation fee parcel service is chosen, the rates of postage applicable to it are also subject to Value Added Tax (VAT) VAT inclusive prices, (postage and fees) are shown below.

# Column 1 Column 2 (a) Rates of Postage for Royal Mail Standard Parcels:

(a) Nates of Fostage to	£	With compensation fee parcels up to £100	With fee compensation fee parcels up to £250 £	With compensation fee parcels up to £500
Weight not exceeding 2kg		6.49	8.29	9.49
Weight exceeding 2kg but not exceeding 4kg	7.62	10.34	12.14	13.34
Weight exceeding 4kg but not exceeding 6kg	10.34	13.61	15.41	16.61
Weight exceeding 6kg but not exceeding 8kg	12.67	16.40	18.20	19.40
Weight exceeding 8kg but not exceeding 10kg		17.53	19.33	20.53
Weight exceeding 10kg but not exceeding 20kg		20.23	22.03	23.23
SIGNED BY Mark Shert	borne			
for and on behalf of Roy	al Mail	l Group Ltd		

## Other Notices

21st March 2011



(2201/27)

# Company Law Supplement

The Company Law Supplement to The Belfast Gazette detailing information notified to or by the Registrar of Companies is published weekly and is now available to view on The Belfast Gazette website at <a href="https://www.gazettes-online.co.uk">www.gazettes-online.co.uk</a>. Go to Browse Recent Issues to find the latest editions or search for a specific Company under the Search Archive option.

# Department of Agriculture and Rural Development

# THE ANIMAL BY-PRODUCTS (ENFORCEMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Agriculture and Rural Development has made a

Statutory Rule entitled The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 124)

The Rule will come into operation on 19th March 2011.

Copies of the Rule may be purchased at an early date from The Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD.

(2301/24)

## Department for Employment and Learning

# THE EDUCATION (STUDENT LOANS) (REPAYMENT) (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department for Employment and Learning in exercise of the powers conferred by under Articles 3(2) to (5) and 8(4) of the Education (Student Support) (Northern Ireland) Order 1998 has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011"

This Rule which comes into operation on 6th April 2011 amends the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009 and provide the statutory framework for the collection and repayment system for income-contingent repayment (ICR) student loans

The effect of this amendment is to implement new penalties for failures by employers to file returns and make payments of tax on time and revise existing penalty structures for late filing and late payment with an aligned set of penalties that will be more effective, more proportionate and more likely to influence behaviour. This Rule also implements the provision made in the Student Loans (Amendment) Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 to exempt income-contingent repayment and mortgage style loans from Individual Voluntary Arrangements (IVAs) in Northern Ireland for Northern Ireland domiciled student loan borrowers. Finally this Rule will amend the principal Regulations to enable the current £15,000 repayment threshold to increase in April 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 in line with inflation by reference to the March Retail Price Index Rate which falls 13 months earlier.

Copies of the regulations may be purchased at an early date from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast. BT1 4GD (2301/53)

# Department of Enterprise, Trade and Investment

# THE GAS AND ELECTRICITY (INTERNAL MARKETS) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Enterprise, Trade and Investment, in exercise of the powers conferred by designation for the purposes of Section 2(2) of the European Communities Act 1972 in relation to energy and energy sources, has made a Statutory Rule entitled the "Gas and Electricity (Internal Markets) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 No. 155".

The purpose of the Statutory Rule is to transpose into domestic legislation the requirements of the EU Third Energy Package. This comprises two Directives – Directive EC/72/2009, and Directive EC/73/2009 and three Regulations – Regulation EC No 713, Regulation EC No. 714, and Regulation EC No. 715.

The Statutory Rule, in implementing the EU Third Energy Package, includes enhanced measures for energy consumer protection; provides more stringent requirements for unbundling of energy transmission network operations from other activities; ensures fairer competition between energy companies within the EU and those outside the EU; provides additional powers and independence for national energy regulators; and cements greater cooperation on energy matters between Member States. The Statutory Rule will amend the Energy (Northern Ireland) Order 2003, the Electricity (Northern Ireland) Order 1992, the Gas (Northern Ireland) Order 1996, the Energy Act (Northern Ireland) 2011, and the Electricity (Applications for Licences and Extensions of Licenses) (No. 2) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007.

The Rule will come into operation on 15th April 2011.

Copies of the Rule will be available for purchase in due course from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD, and can be viewed at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/. (2301/70)

# Department of Enterprise, Trade and Investment

# THE RENEWABLES OBLIGATION (AMENDMENT) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Enterprise, Trade and Investment has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Renewables Obligation (Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" which comes into operation on 1 April 2011.

The Rule amends The Renewables Obligation Order (Northern Ireland) 2009. It makes a number of changes to the Northern Ireland Renewables Obligation (NIRO) mechanism including increased support for the generation of electricity from anaerobic digestion and for certain existing generators adding further capacity; and the introduction of Microgeneration Certification Scheme requirements. The Rule also transposes Articles 17 to 19 of Council directive 2009/28/EC the promotion of the use of energy from renewable sources.

The NIRO operates alongside similar Obligations in Great Britain and the Statutory Rule reflects a number of changes also being made to the corresponding legislation in Great Britain.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr. (2301/111)

## Department of the Environment

#### THE WASTE REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of the Environment has made a Statutory Rule entitled The Waste Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No.127). The Rule, which is made under powers conferred by the European Communities Act and the Waste and Contaminated Land (Northern Ireland) Order 1997, transposes the requirements of the European revised Waste Framework Directive (2008/98/EC). The Regulations come into operation on 8 April 2011.

Copies of the Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/23)

# Department of the Environment

SUPERANNUATION (NI) ORDER 1972 LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (COUNCILLORS) (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 117)

Notice is hereby given that in exercise of the powers conferred by Article 9 of the Superannuation (Northern Ireland) Order 1972 and now vested in it, the Department of the Environment has made the above Regulations.

The Regulations come into operation on 9th May 2011.

The Regulations amend the-

Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009 (the Benefits Regulations);

Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009 (the Administration Regulations); and

The Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001.

These Regulations amend the Benefits Regulations and the Administration Regulations to allow councillors in Northern Ireland to become members of the Local Government Pension Scheme from the fourth day after the next local government elections when, under section 11(2) of the Electoral Law Act (Northern Ireland) 1962, members of district councils come into office.

The Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001 are amended to exclude councillors from eligibility for additional discretionary payments.

Copies of the Regulations may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/44)

## Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE SUPERANNUATION (OFFICES OF THE DIRECTOR AND DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Finance and Personnel in exercise of the powers conferred on it by Article 3 of the Superannuation (Northern Ireland) Order 1972, has made the Superannuation (Offices of the Director and Deputy Director of Public Prosecutions) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011.

The Regulations were made on 18th March 2011.

Copies of the Regulations may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/16)

## Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE PENSIONS INCREASE (MODIFICATION) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Finance and Personnel in exercise of the powers conferred on it by Article 5(3) of the Pensions (Increase) Act (Northern Ireland) Order 2011, has made Regulations entitled The Pensions Increase (Modification) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011.

The Regulations were made on 21st March 2011.

Copies of the Regulations may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/25)

## Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE PENSIONS INCREASE (REVIEW) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Finance and Personnel in exercise of the powers conferred on it by Article 69 of the Social Security Pensions Act (Northern Ireland) Order 2011, has made The Pensions Increase (Review) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011.

The Order was made on 21st March 2011.

Copies of the Regulations may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/26)

# Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE RATES (REGIONAL RATES) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Finance and Personnel in exercise of the powers conferred on it by Article 7(1) and (3) of the Rates (Northern Ireland) Order 1977, has made an Order entitled The Rates (Regional Rates) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011.

The Order was made on 4th March 2011 and affirmed by the Northern Ireland Assembly on 21st March 2011.

Copies of the Order may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/54)

# Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE RATES (HOUSING EXECUTIVE) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Finance and Personnel in exercise of the powers conferred on it by Article 22(4C) of the Rates (Northern Ireland) Order 1977, has made an Order entitled The Rates (Housing Executive) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011.

The Order was made on 28th February 2011 and was affirmed by the Northern Ireland Assembly on 21st March 2011.

Copies of the Order may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/55)

## Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE RATES (INDUSTRIAL HEREDITAMENTS) (SPECIFIED PERCENTAGE) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Finance and Personnel in exercise of the powers conferred on it by Article 17(2) of, and paragraph 4(2) of Schedule 7 to, has made an Order entitled The Rates (Industrial Hereditaments) (Specified Percentage) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011.

The Order was made on 4th March 2011 and affirmed by the Northern Ireland Assembly on 21st March 2011.

Copies of the Order may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/61)

## Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE LAND REGISTRATION (AMENDMENT) RULES (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Finance and Personnel has made a Statutory Rule entitled the Land Registration (Amendment) Rules (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 141) which comes into operation on 3rd October 2011

The rule will facilitate electronic applications for registering transactions in land in the Land Registry of Northern Ireland.

The rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/northernireland/ni-srni.htm.

Department of Finance and Personnel, Land and Property Services, Lincoln Buildings, 24-45 Great Victoria Street, Belfast, BT2 7SL

(2301/81)

## Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE LAND REGISTRATION (ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Finance and Personnel has made a Statutory Rule entitled the Land Registration (Electronic Communications) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 158) which comes into operation on 3rd October 2011.

The Rule will permit electronic documents, which are created within the computer system of the Land Registry of Northern Ireland, to be valid for the creation, transfer, variation or extinction of estates in land.

The rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast BT1 4GD or viewed online at

http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/northernireland/ni-srni.htm.

Department of Finance and Personnel, Land and Property Services, Lincoln Buildings, 24-45 Great Victoria Street, Belfast, BT2 7SL

(2301/84)

## Department of Finance and Personnel

# THE CROSS-BORDER MEDIATION REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011 (No. 157)

The Department of Finance and Personnel has made a Statutory Rule entitled The Cross-Border Mediation Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 which comes into operation on 18th April 2011.

The Rule implements Directive 2008/52/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on certain aspects of mediation in civil and commercial matters, which applies to cross border disputes.

Regulation 3 sets out when mediators and those involved in the administration of mediation may be compelled to give evidence in civil and commercial judicial proceedings or arbitration.

Regulations 4 to 12 provide for the extension of limitation periods so that these do not expire during the mediation process.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at:

http://www.legislation.gov.uk.nisr (2301/85)

# Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety

# THE MISUSE OF DRUGS (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety in exercise of the powers conferred on it by sections 7,(4) and 5 of the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 as adapted by section 7(9) of that Act and now vested in it and of all other powers enabling it in that behalf and after consultation with the Advisory Council on the Misuse of Drugs in accordance with section 7 (7) of that Act has made Regulations entitled The Misuse of Drugs (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011.

These Regulations come into operation on 28 March 2011 (2301/82)

# Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety

# THE MISUSE OF DRUGS (DESIGNATION)(AMENDMENT) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety in exercise of the powers conferred on it by sections 7,(4) and 5 of the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 as adapted by section 7(9) of that Act and now vested in it and of all other powers enabling it in that behalf and after consultation with the Advisory Council on the Misuse of Drugs in accordance with section 7 (7) of that Act has made Regulations entitled The Misuse of Drugs (Designation)(Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011.

These Regulations come into operation on 28 March 2011 (2301/83)

# Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety

# THE HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES TRUSTS (MEMBERSHIP AND PROCEDURE) (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety has made a Statutory Rule entitled 'The Health and Social Services Trusts (Membership and Procedure) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011' which comes into operation on 26 May 2011.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr.

## Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety

# THE REGULATION AND IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY (APPOINTMENTS AND PROCEDURE) (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety has made a Statutory Rule entitled 'The Regulation and Improvement Authority (Appointments and Procedure) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011' which comes into operation on 26 May 2011.

The Rule removes the disqualification for appointment relating to persons who hold a paid appointment or office with a trade union which represents the interests of members who are employed by a health service body or a health and social services body.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr. (2301/87)

# Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety

# THE NORTHERN IRELAND MEDICALAND DENTAL TRAINING AGENCY (ESTABLISHMENT AND CONSTITUTION) (AMENDMENT) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety has made a Statutory Rule entitled 'The Northern Ireland Medical and Dental Training Agency (Establishment and Constitution) (Amendment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011' which comes into operation on 26 May 2011.

The Rule removes the disqualification for appointment relating to persons holding employment or office with a trade union which represents the interests of members who are employed by a health and social services body.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr. (230

## Department of Justice

# THE SUPERVISION AND TREATMENT ORDERS (MAXIMUM PERIOD) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department of Justice has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Supervision and Treatment Orders (Maximum Period) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 115), which comes into operation on 30 June 2011.

The Rule amends Schedule 2A to the Mental Health (Northern Ireland) Order 1986 to increase, from 2 years to 3 years, the maximum period for supervision and treatment orders.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr (2301/62)

## Law Society of Northern Ireland

# THE SOLICITORS' (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1976 NOTICE OF ORDER OF THE DISCIPLINARY TRIBUNAL

The Disciplinary Tribunal constituted under the above mentioned Order has held an enquiry into applications made by the Law Society of Northern Ireland and having found the allegations contained in the Affidavits of the applicant to have been substantiated, ordered that the name of Marie-Therese McKnight, formerly practising as McKnight & Co., Solicitors at 9 Railway Street, Lisburn, BT28 1XG be struck-off the Roll of Solicitors in Northern Ireland.

Signed Suzanne Bryson, Deputy Chief Executive/Deputy Secretary (2301/51)

## Northern Ireland Courts and Tribunals Service

### COUNTY COURTS (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1980 THE COUNTY COURT (AMENDMENT No. 2) RULES (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 100)

Notice is hereby given that the County Court Rules Committee, in exercise of the powers conferred by Article 47 of the County Courts (Northern Ireland) Order 1980 after consultation with the Minister of Justice and with the agreement of the Lord Chief Justice, has made on 11 March 2011 a Statutory Rule entitled the County Court (Amendment No. 2) Rules (Northern Ireland) 2011 which will come into operation on the 2nd May 2011.

These Rules amend the County Court Rules (Northern Ireland) 1981 (S.R. 1981 No. 225) to take account of the increase in the small claims court jurisdiction from £2000 to £3000.

Copies of this Statutory Rule may be obtained from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD. (2301/65)

# Office of the First Minister and deputy First Minister

# THE DEPARTMENTS (TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS) (No. 2) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Office of the First Minister and deputy First Minister has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Departments (Transfer of Functions) (No.

2) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 56), which has been passed by affirmative resolution of the Assembly on 14th March 2011. The Rule will come into operation on 1st April 2011.

The Rule transfers the functions hitherto exercisable by the Department of Enterprise, Trade and Investment in relation to general surveys of the state of trade and business under the Statistics of Trade and Employment (Northern Ireland) Order 1988 to the Department of Finance and Personnel.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at:-

http//www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr/2011 (2301/36)

## Department for Social Development

# THE GUARANTEED MINIMUM PENSIONS INCREASE ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Guaranteed Minimum Pensions Increase Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 112), which comes into operation on 6 April 2011.

The Rule increases the guaranteed minimum pension portion of a salary related occupational pension by 3 per cent.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr. (2301/1)

## Department for Social Development

# THE PENSION PROTECTION FUND (PENSION COMPENSATION SHARING AND ATTACHMENT ON DIVORCE ETC.) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Pension Protection Fund (Pension Compensation Sharing and Attachment on Divorce etc.) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 113), which comes into operation on 6 April 2011.

The Rule sets out the information that the Board of the Pension Protection Fund must supply and what information has to be provided about the member and their spouse or civil partner, prescribes the rights that are shareable, how pension compensation and the cash equivalent value of that compensation are calculated and verified and adjustments that can be made to, and notification about, the implementation period, sets out that charges will be recovered by the Board from the parties to the proceedings, the circumstances in which compensation will be payable to survivors and include provisions relating to revaluation, commutation, early payment, annual increases and the compensation cap.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr. (2301/2)

# Department for Social Development

# THE PENSION PROTECTION FUND (PENSIONS ON DIVORCE ETC.: CHARGES) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Pension Protection Fund (Pensions on Divorce etc.: Charges) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 114), which comes into operation on 6 April 2011.

The Rule sets out the information which must be provided and the circumstances in which, and the methods by which, the Board of the Pension Protection Fund may recover the costs incurred as a result of implementing a pension sharing order or provision and administering a pension attachment or earmarking order.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr. (2301/3)

## Department for Social Development

# THE SOCIAL SECURITY BENEFITS UP-RATING ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a regulation entitled the Social Security Benefits Up-rating Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 119) which comes into operation on 1st April 2011.

The Rule is part of the annual up-rating of Social Security Benefits and Pensions and alters the rates and amounts of certain social security benefits and other sums.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr.

Department for Social Development, Level 1, James House, 2-4 Cromac Avenue,

Ormeau Road, Belfast, BT7 2JA

(2301/18)

## Department for Social Development

# THE SOCIAL SECURITY BENEFITS UP-RATING REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled the Social Security Benefits Up-rating Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 (SR2011 No. 120) which comes into operation on 11th April 2011.

The Rule is linked to the annual increase of Social Security Benefits and increases child dependency increases payable with carer's allowance and the amount allowed for personal expenses where a person is in accommodation for which part of his benefit is paid direct to the person to whom charges in respect of that accommodation are payable.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr.

Department for Social Development, Level 1, James House,

2-4 Cromac Avenue, Ormeau Road,

Belfast, BT7 2JA

(2301/19)

## Department for Social Development

# THE SOCIAL SECURITY (INDUSTRIAL INJURIES) (DEPENDENCY) (PERMITTED EARNINGS LIMITS) (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made an order entitled the Social Security (Industrial Injuries) (Dependency) (Permitted Earnings Limits) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 121) which comes into operation on 13th April 2011.

The Rule is linked to the annual up-rating of Social Security Benefits and increases the earnings limit above which an increase of disablement pension with unemployability supplement is not payable for a child or children

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr

Department for Social Development, Level 1, James House,

2-4 Cromac Avenue.

Ormean Road

Belfast, BT7 2JA

(2301/20)

## Department for Social Development

# THE OCCUPATIONAL PENSION SCHEMES (LEVY CEILING) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Occupational Pension Schemes (Levy Ceiling) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 122), which comes into operation on 31 March 2011.

This Order specifies the amount of the levy ceiling as £892,092,092 for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2011.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr. (2301/21)

## Department for Social Development

# THE PENSION PROTECTION FUND (PENSION COMPENSATION CAP) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Pension Protection Fund (Pension Compensation Cap) Order (Northern Ireland) 2011" (S.R. 2011 No. 123), which comes into operation on 1 April 2011.

This Rule specifies the amount of the pension compensation cap as £33,219.36 for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2011.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr.

(2301/22)

## Department for Social Development

# THE SOCIAL FUND MATERNITY AND FUNERAL EXPENSES (GENERAL) (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled the Social Fund Maternity and Funeral Expenses (General) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 130) which comes into operation on 23rd March 2011.

The Rule provides for the restriction of payment of the Sure Start Maternity Grant to the first child only from April 2011 and also amends the Social Security (Claims and Payments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1987. The grant is £500 for each child expected, born, adopted or the subject of a parental order.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/northernireland/ni-srni.htm.

Department for Social Development,

Level 1

James House,

2-4 Cromac Avenue,

Ormeau Road, Belfast BT7 2JA

(2301/37)

(2301/42)

# Department for Social Development

# THE PNEUMOCONIOSIS, ETC., (WORKERS' COMPENSATION) (PAYMENT OF CLAIMS) (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled the Pneumoconiosis, etc., (Workers' Compensation) (Payment of Claims) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 67) which comes into operation on 1st April 2011.

The Rule increases lump sum payments which may be made to certain persons disabled by a disease to which the Pneumoconiosis, etc., (Workers' Compensation) (Northern Ireland) Order 1979 applies, or to dependants of persons who were so disabled before they died.

Copies of the regulation, as affirmed by resolution of the Assembly on 21st March 2011, may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast, BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr.

Department for Social Development,

Level 1, James House,

2-4 Cromac Avenue,

Ormeau Road,

Belfast, BT7 2JA

## Department for Social Development

# THE SOCIAL SECURITY (MISCELLANEOUS AMENDMENTS) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled the Social Security (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 135) which comes into operation on or after 1st April 2011.

The Rule provides for minor miscellaneous and non-controversial amendments to the income-related benefits Regulations and other social security Regulations and makes consequential revocations.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/northernireland/ni-srni.htm.

Department for Social Development,

Level 1,

James House,

2-4 Cromac Avenue,

Ormeau Road,

Belfast, BT7 2JA

(2301/45)

## Department for Social Development

# THE HOUSING BENEFIT (MISCELLANEOUS AMENDMENTS) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2011

The Department for Social Development has made a Statutory Rule entitled The Housing Benefit (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 (S.R. 2011 No. 136) which comes into operation on or after 1st March 2011.

The Rule provides for miscellaneous amendments to regulations relating to housing benefit.

The Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office Bookshop, 18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast BT1 4GD or viewed online at http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/northernireland/ni-srni.htm.

Department for Social Development,

Level 1,

James House,

2-4 Cromac Avenue,

Ormeau Road,

Belfast, BT7 2JA

(2301/52)

# Corporate Insolvency



## Administration

# Appointment of Administrators

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANY INSOLVENCY)

In the Matter of

### MICRAN LIMITED

Company No: NI 032691

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

Nature of business: Carpentry and Joinery

Registered office of company: 65 Creagh Road, Castledawson, BT45 8EY

Administrator appointment made on 23 March 2011

Names and address of administrators: Paul Rooney and Garth Calow of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Waterfront Plaza, 8 Laganbank Road, Belfast, BT1 3LR

Joint Administrators (IP Nos 9710 & 8647)

(2410/89)

## Receivership

## Appointment of Administrative Receiver

### PEARTREE HOMES LIMITED

Nature of business: Building & Building Completion Contracts

Registered number: NI 043995

Registered office of company: 362 Comber Road, Dundonald, Belfast,

BT16 1XB

Name of person appointing the administrative receiver: Ulster Bank

Limited

Date of appointment of administrative receiver: 11 March 2011 Name and address of administrative receiver: John J. Cavanagh of Cavanagh Kelly Chartered Accountants & Licenced Insolvency Practitioner, Scottish Provident Building, 7 Donegall Square West,

Belfast, BT1 6JH

(Insolvency Practitioner No.: GB NI 005)

(2421/56)

# Creditors' Voluntary Winding Up Resolution for Winding-Up

NOTICE UNDER THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

Company Number - NI 060481

#### ARDIS LIVING LIMITED

At a General Meeting of the above-named company, convened and held at the offices of cavanagh | kelly, 38 Northland Row, Dungannon, Co Tyrone, BT71 6AP the following special resolution numbered one and ordinary resolution number two were passed:

- 1 "That the company cannot by reason of its liabilities continue its business and that the company be wound up voluntarily."
- 2 "That John J. Cavanagh of cavanagh | kelly, Chartered Accountants & Licensed Insolvency Practitioner, 38 Northland Row, Dungannon, BT71 6AP, be appointed Liquidator for the purposes of the voluntary winding-up."

Dated this 21 March 2011

David Ardis, Director

(2441/79)

## Resolution for Winding-Up

NOTICE UNDER THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

Special Resolution of

### COBINE LEISURE LIMITED

Company No. NI 071135

At an extraordinary general meeting of the Creditors of the above-named company duly convened and held at 22 Lower Windsor Avenue, Belfast on 15th March 2011 the following Special Resolution was duly passed.

That the company should be wound up on the grounds that it is unable to pay its debts and that James B. Kennedy of James B. Kennedy & Co., 22 Lower Windsor Avenue, Belfast, BT9 7DW be appointed liquidator of the company.

(2441/30)

# Resolution for Winding-Up

### TNR SYSTEMS LIMITED

Company Number: NI 038844

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of the above named Company convened and held at the offices of McKeague Morgan & Company, 27 College Gardens, Belfast, BT9 6BS on 16th March 2011, the following resolutions were duly passed; No. 1 as a Special Resolution, No. 2 as an Ordinary Resolution:

1. "That it has been proved to the satisfaction of the meeting that the Company cannot, by reason of its liabilities, continue its business and that the Company be wound up voluntarily."

 "That Nicholas McKeague, FCA of McKeague Morgan & Company, Chartered Accountants of 27 College Gardens, Belfast, BT9 6BS, be appointed liquidator for the purposes of the voluntary winding up."

Dated this 25th March 2011

Mr. A. Toner, Director (2441/66)

## **Meetings of Creditors**

THE INSOLVENCY (NI) ORDER 1989

Company Number: NI 050585

ALL PARTS LIMITED

Registered Office: 27 Joymount, Carrickfergus, County Antrim, BT38

7DN

Principal Trading Address: Unit 8, 30 Kennedy Way, Belfast, BT11 9AP Notice is hereby given, pursuant to Article 84 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989, that a meeting of the Creditors of the above-named Company will be held as follows:—

Date: 1 April 2011

Venue: Wellington Park Hotel, Malone Road, Belfast, BT9

Time: 11.00 a.m.

The meeting is convened for the purposes mentioned in Articles 85 to 87 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989, namely to consider the Directors' Statement of Affairs, to appoint a Liquidator, and to establish, if thought fit, a Liquidation committee.

A list of names and addresses of the Company's Creditors will be available for inspection free of charge at the offices of Liz McKeown & Co., 3 Wellington Park, Malone Road, Belfast, BT9 6DJ during the two business days preceding the above meeting, between the hours of 10.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m.

Dated 21 March 2011

By Order of the Board

Hugh Burns, Director (2442/75)

## Meetings of Creditors

In the Matter of

THE INSOLVENCY ORDER 1989

### MILLAR SIGNS LTD

NI 038714

Notice is hereby given, pursuant to Article 84 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989, that a Meeting of the creditors of the above-named Company will be held at the offices of James B. Kennedy & Co, 22 Lower Windsor Avenue, Belfast, BT9 7DW, on Monday 4th April 2011 at 11.00 a.m. for the purposes mentioned in Articles 85 to 87 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989.

A list of the names and addresses of the company's creditors may be inspected free of charge at the offices of James B. Kennedy & Co, at 22 Lower Windsor Avenue, Belfast on the two business days preceding the meeting.

Creditors wishing to vote at the meeting must (unless they are individual creditors attending in person) lodge their proxies at the offices of James B. Kennedy & Co, 22 Lower Windsor Avenue, Belfast no later than 12.00 noon on Friday 1st April 2011

Dated this 23rd day of March 2011

By Order of the Board

Nigel Millar, Director

(2442/64)

# **Meetings of Creditors**

INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

RURAL COLLEGE LIMITED

Former Trading Address: Derrynoid, Draperstown, Derry, BT45 7DW

Company Number: NI 027965

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to Article 84 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989, that a Meeting of the Creditors of the above-named Company will be held at the offices of Arthur Boyd &

Company, Franklin House, 12 Brunswick Street, Belfast on Friday 1 April at 12 noon for the purposes mentioned in Articles 85 to 87 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989.

A list of names and addresses of the Company's Creditors will be available for inspection free of charge at the offices of Arthur Boyd & Company, Franklin House, 12 Brunswick Street, Belfast, BT2 7GE during the two business days before the meeting.

Dated: 22 March 2011
By Order of the Baoad
J. McLernon – Director

(2442/71)

## Appointment of Liquidators

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989

Company Number: NI 060481

Name of company: ARDIS LIVING LIMITED

Nature of business: Retail Furniture Type of liquidation: Creditors

Address of registered office: Davis House, 4 Banbridge Road, Gilford,

Co. Down, BT63 6DJ

Liquidators name and address: John J. Cavanagh, 38 Northland Row,

Dungannon, Co. Tyrone, BT71 6AP Office holder number: GBNI 005 Date of appointment: 21 March 2011 By whom appointed: Creditors

(2443/78)

## Appointment of Liquidators

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989

Company Number: NI 071135

Name of Company: **COBINE LEISURE LIMITED**Nature of Business: Operating of a Licensed Premises

Type of Liquidation: Creditors

Address of Registered Office: 16 High Street, Bangor, BT20 5AY Liquidator's name and address: James B. Kennedy, 22 Lower Windsor

Avenue, Belfast, BT9 7DW Office Holder Number: GBNI 49 Date of Appointment: 15th March 2011 By whom Appointment: Creditors

(2443/29)

# Appointment of Liquidators

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989

Company Number: NI 019280

Name of company: JAMESON BUILDING SERVICES LIMITED

Nature of business: Provision of Building and Property Maintenance

Type of Liquidation: Creditors

Address of registered office: Moore Stephens, 4th Floor Donegall House,

Donegall Square North, Belfast BT1 5GB

Liquidators name and address: David W. J. McClean, Moore Stephens, 4th Floor Donegall House, Donegall Square North, Belfast BT1 5GB

Office holder numbers: GB NI 1047 Date of Appointment: 15 March 2011

By whom appointed: Creditors (2443/41)

# Appointment of Liquidators

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989

Company Number: NI 038844

Name of company: TNR SYSTEMS LIMITED
Previous name of company Toner Windows Limited

Nature of business: Manufacture Supply and Fit UPVC windows and

doors

Type of liquidation Creditors

Address of registered office 27 College Gardens, Belfast, BT9 6BS Liquidator's name and address: Nicholas McKeague, McKeague Morgan

& Co, 27 College Gardens, Belfast BT9 6BS

Office holder number: GBNI 018 Date of appointment: 16th March 2011 By whom appointed: Creditors

(2443/68)

## Final Meetings

### C+ ADVANCED PERFORMANCE TEXTILES LIMITED

- in Liquidation

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to Article 92 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989 that a final meeting of the members of C+ Advanced Performance Textiles Limited will be held at the offices of KPMG, Stokes House, 17-25 College Square East, Belfast BT1 6HD on 22 April 2011 at 10.00 a.m. and will be followed by a meeting of creditors at 10.30 a.m. for the purposes of receiving an account of the Liquidator's acts and dealings.

A member or creditor entitled to attend and vote at either of the above meetings may appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of them. A proxy need not be a member or creditor of the company. Proxies for both meetings must be lodged at Stokes House, 17-25 College Square East, Belfast, BT1 6HD not later than 12 noon on 21 April 2011.

Dated: 25 March 2011

John Hansen, Liquidator (2445/69)

### **Notice to Creditors**

### ARDIS LIVING LIMITED

In Liquidation

At a General meeting held under Article 84 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989, on 21 March 2011 for the above company, I was duly appointed Liquidator.

Notice is hereby given that the Creditors of the above-named Company are required on or before 2 May 2011 to send their full names and addresses and particulars of their debts or claims and the names and addresses of the Solicitors, if any, to the undersigned John J. Cavanagh, cavanagh | kelly, Chartered Accountants & Licensed Insolvency Practitioner, 38 Northland Row, Dungannon, BT71 6AP, the Liquidator of the Company and, if so come in and prove their said debts or claims at such time and place as shall be specified in such notice, or in default thereof, they will be excluded from the benefit of any distribution made before such debts are proved.

Dated this 21 March 2011

John J. Cavanagh, Liquidator (2446/80)

### Notice to Creditors

In the Matter of

### TNR SYSTEMS LIMITED

In Liquidation

Registered Office: 27 College Gardens, Belfast, BT9 6BS

Notice is hereby given that I, Nicholas McKeague, FCA, was appointed Liquidator of the above named company on 16th day of March 2011 at the first meeting of creditors, pursuant to Article 86 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989. Creditors of the above named company are required on or before the 26th April 2011 to send their full names and addresses and the particulars of their debts or claims and the names and addresses of their solicitors to Nicholas McKeague, FCA, of McKeague Morgan & Company, 27 College Gardens, Belfast, BT9 6BS, the liquidator of said company, and if so required by notice in writing from the said liquidator to come in and prove their said debts or claims at such time and place as shall be specified in such notice, or in default thereof they will be excluded from the benefit of any distribution made before such debts are proved.

Dated this 25th March 2011

Nicholas McKeague, Liquidator

(2446/67)

# Winding Up By The Court Petition to Wind-Up (Companies)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP)

2011 No. 019182

In the Matter of

### AIRACOIL LIMITED

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

A Petition to wind up the above named company whose registered address is Unit 1-2 Craigmore Business Park, Newry, Co. Down presented on 10th February 2011 by Kayfoam Woolfson whose registered office is Bluebell Industrial Estate, Naas Road, Dublin 12 claiming to be a Creditor of the Company will be heard at The Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JF.

Date: 14th day of April 2011

Time: 10.00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the Petition can be heard)

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the petitioner or his/its solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hours on 13th day of April 2011.

The Petitioner's solicitor is *Lynsey Croft*, Carson McDowell, Murray House, Murray Street, Belfast, BT1 6DN.

Dated this 24th day of March 2011

## Petition to Wind-Up (Companies)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP)

In the Matter of

### A T SAND & GRAVEL LIMITED

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

A Petition to wind up the above-named company whose registered offices are at 56a Cavanoneill Road, Pomeroy, Dungannon, Co. Tyrone, BT70 2SH presented on 22 February 2011 by Singers Corporate Asset Finance Limited claiming to be a creditor of the company will be heard at The Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JF.

Date: 7 April 2011

Time: 10.00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the petition can be heard)

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the petitioner or his/its solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hours on 6 April 2011.

The Petitioner's solicitor is *Cleaver Fulton Rankin*, Solicitors, 50 Bedford Street, Belfast, BT2 7FW.

Dated: 22 March 2011 (2450/73)

## Petition to Wind-Up (Companies)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP)

2011 No. 024993

In the Matter of

### **HUGHES PLUMBING & HEATING (N.I.) LIMITED**

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

A Petition to wind up the above company whose registered office is situate at 6 Glenmurray Court, Belfast, Co. Antrim, Northern Ireland, BT11 8QH presented on the 23rd February 2011 by Damian Hughes of 78 Redwood Grove, Belfast, BT17 9RN claiming to be a creditor will be heard at The Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JF.

Date: 7 April 2011

Dated 23 March 2011

Time: 10.00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the petition can be heard)

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the petitioner or its solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hours on 6 April 2011.

The Petitioner's solicitor is Gray Magee Solicitors, 22 Hillview Avenue,

Newtownabbey, Co. Antrim, BT36 6AE.

(2450/57)

## Petition to Wind-Up (Companies)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP)

No. 11/23430

(2450/90)

In the Matter of

### McALEER CONSTRUCTION LIMITED

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

A Petition to wind up the above named company of Middletown, Boa Island, Kesh, County Fermanagh, BT93 8AL presented on the 21st February 2011 by Victor Carrothers of F4 Portora Wharf, Enniskillen, County Fermanagh and Raymond Johnston of 141 Enniskillen Road, Ballinamallard, County Fermanagh, claiming to be a creditor will be heard at The Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 31F

Date: 7th April 2011

Time: 10.00 a.m. (or as soon thereafter as the petition can be heard)

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the petitioners or their solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hours on the 6th April 2011.

The Petitioner's solicitor is *Kevin Murnaghan* of Murnaghan Fee Solicitors, Boston Chambers, Queen Elizabeth Road, Enniskillen, County Fermanagh, BT74 7JA.

Dated 16 March 2011 (2450/31)

## Petition to Wind-Up (Companies)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP)

2011 No. 32666

In the Matter of

### PINEHILL ENTERPRISES LIMITED

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

A Petition to wind up the above-named company having its registered office at Unit 9, Springtown Business Park, Springtown Industrial Estate, Derry, BT48 0LY, presented on 11 March 2011 by Kevin Heaney of 27 Elmvale, Culmore, Derry, BT48 8SH, claiming to be a Director of the Company will be heard at The Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JF on:

Date: 5th May 2011

Time: 10.00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the petition can be heard)

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the Petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the Petitioner or their solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hours on 4th May 2011.

The Petitioners' Solicitor is *Tughans Solicitors*, Marlborough House, 30 Victoria Street, Belfast, BT1 3GG.

Dated 16th March 2011 (2450/28)

## Petition to Wind-Up (Companies)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP)

In the Matter of

#### SNACK POINTS IRELAND LIMITED

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

A Petition to wind up the above-named company whose registered offices are at 196 William Street, Londonderry, BT48 6EP presented on 21 February 2011 by Ronan Duffy of McCambridge Duffy LLP Insolvency Practitioners claiming to be Supervisor of the company's CVA will be heard at The Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JF.

Date: 7 April 2011

Time: 10.00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the petition can be heard)

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the petitioner or his/its solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hours on 6 April 2011.

The Petitioner's solicitor is *Cleaver Fulton Rankin*, Solicitors, 50 Bedford Street, Belfast, BT2 7FW.

Dated: 21 March 2011 (2450/58)

## Petition to Wind-Up (Partnerships)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP)

2011 No. 25238

In the Matter of

### GS LOGISTICS ("THE PARTNERSHIP")

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENT PARTNERSHIPS ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 1995

A Petition to wind up the above-named company of 15 Brockagh Road, Eglinton, Londonderry, BT47 3AT ("The Partnership') presented on 23 February 2011 by the Commissioners of Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs, 100 Parliament Street, London, SW1A 2BQ, claiming to be a creditor of the company will be heard at The Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JE.

Date: Thursday 7 April 2011

Time: 10.00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the petition can be heard)

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the Petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the petitioners or their solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hours on 6 April 2011.

The petitioner's solicitor is *J. H. Conn*, Crown Solicitor for Northern Ireland, Crown Solicitor's Office, Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast BT1 3JE

Dated: 25 March 2011 (2451/93)

# Petition to Wind-Up (Partnerships)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP)

2011 No. 23708

In the Matter of

### KELLY BROS ("THE PARTNERSHIP")

And in the Matter of

THE INSOLVENT PARTNERSHIPS ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 1995

A Petition to wind up the above-named partnership of 83 Edemore Road, Tempo, Enniskillen, County Fermanagh, BT94 3JT ("The Partnership") presented on 21 February 2011 by the Commissioners of Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs, 100 Parliament Street, London, SW1A 2BQ,

claiming to be a creditor of the company will be heard at The Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JE.

Date: Thursday 7 April 2011

Time: 10.00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the petition can be heard)

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the Petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the petitioners or their solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hours on 6 April 2011.

The petitioner's solicitor is *J. H. Conn*, Crown Solicitor for Northern Ireland, Crown Solicitor's Office, Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast BT1 3JE

Dated: 25 March 2011 (2451/92)

## Final Meetings

HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE NORTHERN IRELAND

No. 1599 of 2008

Notice of Intended Dividend

#### McMANUS CONSTRUCTION LIMITED

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to Rule 4.132(1) of the Insolvency Rules (Northern Ireland) 1991, that Final Meetings of Creditors of the above-named company will be held at the offices of Philip Gill & Co., 9 Gibson's Lane, Newtownards, Co. Down, BT23 4LJ on Wednesday 27 April, 2011 at 10.00 a.m. and 10.30 a.m. for the purpose of having a report and account laid before them showing how the winding-up has been conducted, and deciding whether or not the liquidator should have her release.

No dividend has been or will be paid to preferential or unsecured creditors.

A creditor entitled to attend and vote at the meetings may appoint a proxy who need not be a creditor to attend and vote instead of him. Proxies for use at the meeting should be lodged at Philip Gill & Co., 9 Gibson's Lane, Newtownards, Co. Down, BT23 4LJ no later than 12 noon on 26 April 2011

Melanie Reevel Giles, Liquidator

Date: 21 March 2011 (2458/39)

# **Personal Insolvency**



# **Bankruptcy Orders**

**CLOSE**, Christopher, Businessman T/A Close Cut Flowers, 11 Laurelvale, Crumlin, BT29 4WN. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/015888. Date of Presentation of Petition—4th February 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/94)

**FEENAN**, Brian, Share Fisherman, 36 Hill Street, Ardglass, Downpatrick, BT30 7TX. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/010992. Date of Presentation of Petition—25th January 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors.

(2503/95)

**HALL**, Hector, Unknown, 50 Gulf Road, Killaloo, Londonderry, BT47 3TW. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—10/150737. Date of Presentation of Petition—24th November 2010. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/96)

**IBRAHIM**, Arif, Unknown, residing at 116 The Glade, Mossley, Newtownabbey, BT36 5NS and t/a 44 Castle Street, Belfast, BT1 1HB. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/017019. Date of Presentation of Petition—7th February 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/97)

**KEEGAN**, Andrew, Unknown, 3 McCormick Place, Crossmaglen, Newry, BT35 9HD. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No.

of Matter — 11/011203. Date of Presentation of Petition — 25th January 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition — Creditors. (2503/98)

**KERNAGHAN**, Alan, Former Labourer, 7B, Breda House Drumart Drive, Belfast, BT8 7EU. Date of Bankruptcy Order—16th March 2011. No. of Matter—10/158501. Date of Presentation of Petition—13th December 2010. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors.

(2503/99)

LAU, Pauline Yin Fung, Unknown, 15 Woodcroft Brae Old Park Road, Ballymena, BT42 1FY. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—10/144173. Date of Presentation of Petition—10th November 2010. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/100)

LITTLE, Niall, Photographer Formerly T/A Niall Little Photography, residing at 1 Carnesure Court, Comber, Newtownards, BT23 5WR, and formerly t/a 80a Sunnyside Street, Belfast, BT7 3EY. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/030544. Date of Presentation of Petition—8th March 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Debtors. (2503/101)

McATEER, Mark Noel, Unknown, 23 Temain Road, Limavady, BT49 0QA. Date of Bankruptcy Order—16th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/018086. Date of Presentation of Petition—8th February 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/102)

McCULLAGH, Patricia Anne, Classroom Assistant, 12 Umgola Manor, Armagh, BT60 4BF. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/030665. Date of Presentation of Petition—8th March 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Debtors. (2503/103)

McGLINCHEY, Brian, Sub Contractor T/A B & M Contracts, residing at 174 Crockanboy Road, Omagh, BT79 7RS and t/a 10 McNulty Park, Drumlea, Omagh, BT79 7SH. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/010195. Date of Presentation of Petition—24th January 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/104)

McKERNAN, Kerri Lynn, Unknown, residing at 11 Brookvale Avenue, Bangor, BT19 7ZP and formerly t/a 243 Lisburn Road, Belfast, BT9 7EN. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/016873. Date of Presentation of Petition—4th February 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/105)

McMULLAN, Karen, Fast Food Shops Proprietor Of The Populars, residing at 2a Church Road, Carryduff, Belfast, BT8 8DT, formerly t/a 188a Saintfield Road, Belfast, BT8 6HG and Arnolds, 388 Upper Newtownards Rd, Belfast BT4 3EY. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/016993. Date of Presentation of Petition—7th February 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/106)

McMULLAN, Kenneth, Fast Food Shops Proprietor Of The Populars, residing at 2a Church Road, Carryduff, Belfast, BT8 8DT, formerly t/a 188a Saintfield Road, Belfast, BT8 6HG and 388 Upper Newtownards Road, Belfast BT4 3EY. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/017001. Date of Presentation of Petition—7th February 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors.

(2503/107)

**O'REILLY**, Kieran, T/A Vogue Limo Hire, 53 Brookvale, Strabane, BT82 9PS. Date of Bankruptcy Order—2nd March 2011. No. of Matter—11/012200. Date of Presentation of Petition—27th January 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors. (2503/108)

WARD, Hugh Paul, Property Developer, residing and t/a 63 Tollymore Road, Newcastle, BT33 0JN. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/002854. Date of Presentation of Petition—10th January 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors.

**WARD**, Louise, Housewife, residing and t/a 63 Tollymore Road, Newcastle, BT33 0JL. Date of Bankruptcy Order—14th March 2011. No. of Matter—11/002848. Date of Presentation of Petition—10th January 2011. Whether Creditors or Debtors Petition—Creditors.

(2503/110)

# **Personal Legal**



### **Deceased Estates**

## Statutory Notice to Creditors & Others

IN THE ESTATE OF BRIAN HUGHES OF 15 BRACKAVILLE ROAD, COALISLAND, IN THE COUNTY OF TYRONE, BT71 4NH

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to Section 28 of the Trustee Act (Northern Ireland) 1958 that all creditors, beneficiaries and other persons having any claims against or interest in the estate of the above deceased who died on the 4th February 2011 are hereby requested to send on or before the 3rd day of June 2011 particulars of such claims or interests to the undersigned Solicitors for the Personal Representative of the above named Deceased.

AND NOTICE is hereby given that after the 3rd day of June 2011, the Personal Representative will proceed to convey or distribute the estate of the said Deceased among the parties entitled thereto having regard only to the claims and demands of which particulars have been received.

Dated this 21st day of March 2011

Signed: Carmel O'Meara and Co. Solicitors, 32, Irish Street, Dungannon, County Tyrone, BT70 1DB, Solicitors for the Personal Representative and in the estate of Brian Hughes, Deceased.

(2903/59)

### Statutory Notice to Creditors & Others

IN THE ESTATE OF CHARLES McFARLAND, LATE OF 50 TULLAGHANS ROAD, FINVOY, BALLYMONEY, COUNTY ANTRIM, DECEASED ("the Deceased").

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to Section 28 of the Trustee Act (Northern Ireland) 1958, that all creditors, beneficiaries and other persons having any claims against or interest in the estate of the Deceased, who died on 29th November 2010 are hereby required to send within three (3) months of the date of this Notice, particulars of such claims or interests to the undersigned Solicitors for the Personal Representatives of the Deceased.

AND NOTICE is further hereby given that after three months from the date of this Notice the said Personal Representatives will proceed to convey or distribute the property of the Deceased among the parties entitled thereto having regard only to the claims and demands of which particulars shall have been received within the said period of three months.

Dated this 21 day of March 2011

Signed: John W. Pinkerton & Son, Solicitors for the Personal Representatives, 5 Linenhall Street,, Ballmoney, BT53 6DP.

(2903/74)

## Statutory Notice to Creditors & Others

IN THE ESTATE OF MARGARET HENDERSON (DECEASED), LATE OF 8 BRAESIDE GARDENS, ANTRIM, CO. ANTRIM, BT41 1HB

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to Section 28 of the Trustee Act (Northern Ireland) 1958 that all creditors, beneficiaries and other persons having any claims against or interest in the Estate of the above named Deceased who died on 7th February 2010 are hereby required to send on or before 25th day of May 2011, particulars of such claims or interests to the undersigned solicitors for the Personal Representatives of the Deceased.

AND NOTICE is hereby further given that after the said 25th day of May 2011 the said Personal Representatives will proceed to convey or distribute the property of the said Deceased among the parties entitled thereto having regard only to the claims and demands of which particulars shall have been received.

Dated: 25th day of March 2011

Solicitors for the Personal Representatives: Bigger & Strahan, 89 Royal Avenue, Belfast, BTI 1EX (2903/91)

# TERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO SUBMISSION OF

The Belfast Gazette is an Official Newspaper of Record. The Belfast Gazette publishes official, legal and regulatory notices pursuant to legislation and on behalf of the persons who are required by law to notify the public at large of certain information. For the avoidance of doubt all references to "Belfast Gazette" shall include supplements to the Belfast Gazette and all mediums which shall include the online version of the Belfast Gazette as well as the paper version.

The Belfast Gazette is published by the Publisher (defined below) under the authority and superintendence of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office and Queen's Printer of Acts of Parliament.
Notices received for publication fall under the following broad headings:

State, Parliament, Ecclesiastical, Public Finance, Transport, Planning, Health, Environment, Water, Agriculture & Fisheries, Energy, Post & Telecom, Other Notices, Competition, Corporate Insolvency, Personal Insolvency, Companies & Financial Regulation, Partnerships, Societies Regulation and Personal Legal information. Further information can be found at www.gazettes-online.co.uk.
These terms and conditions ("Terms and Conditions") govern submission

of Notices (as defined below) to the Belfast Gazette. By submitting Notices howsoever communicated, whether at the website www.gazettes-online.co.uk (the "Website") or to www.gazette-submission.co.uk, email, post and/or facsimile, the Advertiser (as defined below) agrees to be bound by these Terms and Conditions.

The Publisher reserves the right to modify these Terms and Conditions at any time. Such modifications shall be effective immediately upon publication of the modified Terms and Conditions. By submitting Notices to the Belfast Gazette after the Publisher has published notice of such modifications, the Advertiser agrees to be bound by the revised Terms and Conditions.

#### 1 Definitions

- In these Terms and Conditions:
  - 'Advertiser" means any company, firm or person who has made an application for and who has been allocated space in the Belfast Gazette, whether acting on their own account or as agent or representative of a principal;
  - "Charges" means the payment due for the acceptance of a Notice by the Publisher payable by the Advertiser as set out in the Authorised Scale of Charges which can be found in the printed copy or at www.gazettes-online.co.uk;
  - "Notice" means all advertisements and state, public or legal notices placed in the Belfast Gazette;
  - "Publisher" means The Stationery Office Limited.
- the singular includes the plural and vice-versa; and
- any reference to any legislative provision shall be deemed to include any subsequent re-enactment or amending provision.
- 2 By submitting a Notice to the Publisher, the Advertiser agrees to be bound by these Terms and Conditions which represent the entire terms agreed between the Publisher and Advertiser in relation to the publication of Notices. These Terms and Conditions shall govern and be incorporated into every Notice, and shall prevail over any terms or conditions (whether or not inconsistent with these Terms and Conditions) contained or referred to in any correspondence or documentation submitted by the Advertiser or implied by custom, practice or course of dealing, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Publisher.
- 3 The Publisher shall make all reasonable efforts to verify the validity of any Notice submitted for publication.
- The Publisher may edit the Notice, subject to the following restrictions: 4.1 the sense of the Notice submitted by the Advertiser must not be altered:
  - Notices shall be edited for house style only, not for content; Notices can be edited to remove obvious duplications of

  - Notices can be edited to re-position material for style;
  - any additions or deletions required in order to include the minimum necessary information set out in any Notice guidelines
  - shall be confirmed with the Advertiser; and no amendments to the text (other than those made as a consequence of 4.1-4.5 above) shall be made without written confirmation from the Advertiser.
- 5 The Advertiser accepts that it submits a Notice entirely at its own risk and that the Publisher shall have discretion whether to accept a Notice for publication. The Advertiser must satisfy itself as to the legislative requirements relating to any Notice. Where the Publisher has accepted a Notice for publication, the Publisher shall have discretion to refuse to publish where the content of the Notice does not comply with legislative or procedural requirements (guidance on both is available from the Publisher). In such instances, the Publisher shall notify the Advertiser of the action required to remedy any deficiency and publication shall not take place until the Publisher is satisfied that such action has been taken by the Advertiser.
- 6 The Publisher (including affiliates, officers, directors, agents and employees) shall not be liable for any loss or damage including expenses or costs suffered by the Advertiser or any third party whether arising from the acts or omissions of the Publisher and/or the Advertiser and/or any third party made in connection with the Notice or otherwise except only

that nothing in these Terms and Conditions shall limit or exclude the Publisher's liability for fraudulent misrepresentation, or for death or personal injury resulting from the Publisher's negligence or the negligence of the Publisher's agents or employees.

- For the avoidance of doubt, subject to clause 4 above, in no circumstances shall the Publisher be liable for any economic losses (including, without limitation, loss of revenues, profits, contracts, business or anticipated savings), any loss of goodwill or reputation, or any special, indirect or consequential damages (however arising, including negligence).
- Where the Publisher is responsible for any error which, in the Publisher's reasonable opinion, causes a substantive change to the meaning of a Notice or would affect the legal efficacy of a Notice, upon notification of such error by the Advertiser, the Publisher shall publish the corrected Notice at no charge and at the next suitable opportunity and this shall be the limit of the Publishers liability or responsibility in these circumstances.
- In the event that the Publisher believes an Advertiser is deliberately submitting Notices in bad faith and in breach of clause 10 below, or has dealings with Advertisers who are in persistent breach of these Terms and Conditions, the Publisher may require further verification of information be provided by such Advertisers and may at its discretion delay publication of those Notices as far as it is able to, until it satisfied that the Notice it has received is based on authentic information.
- 10 The location of the Notice in the Belfast Gazette shall be at the discretion of the Publisher. For the avoidance of doubt, the Notice shall be published in the house style of the Belfast Gazette.
- 11 The Advertiser warrants:

  - 11.1 that it has the right, power and authority to submit the Notice; 11.2 the Notice is not false, inaccurate, misleading nor does it contain fraudulent information;
  - 11.3 the Notice is submitted in good faith, does not contravene any Act of Parliament nor is it in any way illegal or defamatory or an infringement of any other party's rights or an infringement of the British Code of Advertising Practice.
- 12 To the extent permissible by law the Publisher excludes all implied warranties, conditions or other terms, whether implied by statue or otherwise.
- 13 The Advertiser agrees to indemnify and hold the Publisher and/or (as applicable) the Publisher's affiliates, officers, directors, agents and employees harmless from all losses incurred (including legal costs), in respect of any claim or demand, including threatened claims or demands, made by any third party which constitute, or would if proved constitute, a breach or threatened breach by the Advertiser of these Terms and Conditions or any breach by the Advertiser of any law or an infringement of the rights of a third party. The Publisher shall consult with the Advertiser as to the way in which such claims are handled but the Publisher retain the final decision on all aspects of the claim, including choice of instructing solicitors, steps taken in litigation and decisions to settle the case. The Advertiser shall provide, at its own expense, such co-operation and assistance as the Publisher may reasonably request, including the provision of witnesses, access to premises and delivery up of documents.
- 14 The Advertiser shall promptly notify the Publisher in writing of any actual, threatened or suspected claim made by a third party or parties against the Advertiser and/or the Publisher in relation to a Notice. The Publisher reserves the right, following a claim or threatened claim, to immediately remove the Notice which is the subject of the complaint from the website at www.gazettes-online.co.uk and all other websites controlled by the Publisher containing the Notice. The Publisher may require the Advertiser to amend the Notice at its own cost before it agrees to re-publish the Notice if it is capable of rectification to avoid the claim or threatened claim. Any reinstatement of the Notice shall be at the sole discretion of the Publisher.
- 15 The Advertiser acknowledges that the Publisher may re-use Notices and/or allow third parties to re-use Notices accepted for publication in the Belfast Gazette, and hereby assigns to the Publisher all rights, including but not limited to, copyright in all Notices, and warrants that any such activity by the Publisher and/or third parties does not and will not infringe any legal right of the Advertiser or any third party.
- 16 The Advertiser accepts that the purpose of the Belfast Gazette is to disseminate information of interest to the public as widely as possible and that the information contained in the Notices published in the Belfast Gazette may be used by third parties after publication for any purpose. In such instance, the Publisher accepts no liability whatsoever.
- 17 The Advertiser accepts that the Charges may be amended from time to time and will be payable at the rate in force at the time of invoicing unless otherwise agreed by the Publisher. The Charges must be paid by the Advertiser in advance of publication unless other requirements of the Publisher (as determined from time to time) are notified to the Advertiser.
- 18 If the Advertiser wishes to make a Complaint then please refer to the Gazette office.
- 19 A person who is not a party to these Terms and Conditions has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of these Terms and Conditions but this does not affect any right or remedy of a third party specified in these Terms and Conditions or which exists or is available apart from that Act.
- 20 These Terms and Conditions and all other express terms of the contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the Laws of England and the parties hereby submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.

All communications on the business of the Belfast Gazette should be addressed to The Belfast Gazette, 18–22 Arthur Street, Belfast BT1 4GD Telephone: 028 9089 5135 Fax: 028 9023 5401 belfast.gazette@tso.co.uk



AUTHORISED SCALE OF CHARGES From 4th January 2011		Submitted by Webform		All Other formats		Includes Voucher Copy	
			Excl	Incl	Excl	Incl	Incl
			VAT	VAT	VAT	VAT	VAT
1	Winding Up Petitions		47.00	56.40	62.50	75.00	75.75
2	2 All Other Corporate and Personal Insolvency Notices		47.00	56.40	62.50	75.00	75.75
	(2-5 Related Companies will be charged at dou	ble the single company rate)					
(6-10 Related Companies will be charged at treble the single company rate)							
3	3 Water Resources, Control of Pollution (PPC)		94.00	112.80	125.00	150.00	150.75
4	All Other Notice Types	Up to 20 lines	47.00	56.40	62.50	75.00	75.75
		Additional 5 lines or fewer	18.25	21.90	18.25	21.90	
5	5 <b>Proofing</b> - per notice (Copy must be submitted at least one week						
	prior to publication)		Free	Free	31.25	37.50	
6	6 Late Advertisements accepted after 3.00pm, 1 day prior to publication		31.25	37.50	31.25	37.50	
7	7 Withdrawal of Notices after 3.00pm, 1 day prior to publication		47.00	56.40	62.50	75.00	
8	8 Voucher Copy of the newspaper for advertiser's files		0.75	0.75	0.75	0.75	

A logo or crest can be displayed for £50+Vat.

The Belfast Gazette is published on Fridays (bank holidays excepted).

For electronic data (XML, Excel, PDF, Fax) or a subscription please telephone 0870 600 3322 or email *corporatesales@tso.co.uk* 



information & publishing solutions Published by TSO (The Stationery Office) and available from:

### Online

www.tsoshop.co.uk/gaættes

### Mail, Telephone, Fax & E-mail

TSO

PO Box 29, Norwich, NR3 IGN

Telephone orders/General enquiries: 0870 600 5522

Fax orders: 0870 600 5533

Email: customer.services@tso.co.uk

Textphone: 0870 240 3701

### Customers in Ireland can order publications from

TSO Ireland

18-22 Arthur Street, Belfast BT1 4GD 028 9023 8451 Fax 028 9023 5401

### The Parliamentary Bookshop

12 Bridge Street, Parliament Square, London SW1A 2JX

TSO@Blackwell and other Accredited Agents

ISBN 978-0-337-77291-7



Published and printed in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Carol Tullo, Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office being the Government Printer for Northern Ireland and the Officer appointed to print the Acts of the Northern Ireland Assembly.